
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

FEBRUARY 10, 2014 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 
 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your agenda.  Also included are suggested 
or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and 
possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 

 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

STRATEGIES 
 
 
 
 

TOP 12 
 

2013-2014 
 

“STRATEGY IS ABOUT MAKING CHOICES, TRADE-OFFS; IT’S ABOUT DELIBERATELY CHOOSING TO BE DIFFERENT” 
              - MICHAEL PORTER 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 
3 
5 

7 
9 

11 

2 
4 
6 

8 

10 
12 

Attract and retain quality employees 
Investigate programs to improve morale 
 

Improve public perception of the city 
Analyze social media opportunities to connect 

Find a solution to the Downtown 
Development Authority Bond issue 

 

Strengthen Police/Fire  
Consider putting police officers back in schools 
 

Redevelop Site/Office Space 

Evaluate efficiencies of outsourcing services  
consider outsourcing other areas 

 

Improve roads 
Examine budget allocation 

 

Support the Transit Center 
Hold promotional events 

 

Promote Troy  
Find a way to convince youth to stay in Troy 
 

Re-evaluate Vision 2020 

Develop 3-Year budget projections 

Increase lines of communication with Troy Schools  



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
February 10, 2014 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 2013 “A Healthy Me is Drug Free” Pledges Presented by the Red Ribbon 
Chairperson for Troy Families for Safe Homes and Student Representatives from 
the Troy School District (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) 1 

C-2 City of Troy Receives Government Finance Officers Association’s Distinguished 
Budget Presentation Award (Introduced by: Tom Darling, Financial Services 
Director) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Professional/Medical Building West of 
Rochester, South Side of Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road) From R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District 2 

E-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Assisted Living Facilities ZOTA - 246 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 
AND BUSINESSES: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 4 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

H-1 No Postponed Items 4 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – None 4 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 
Council Nominations – Historic District Commission 4 

I-3 No Request for Closed Session 5 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 5 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 6 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – February 3, 2014 ....................................... 6 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 6 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Auction 
Services ................................................................................................................ 6 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 13-6 – 
2014 Water Main Replacement ............................................................................ 7 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Tactical Vests ....................................................................................................... 7 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tax Bill 
Printing ................................................................................................................. 7 



 

 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal Program – 
Upgrade Telephone System ................................................................................. 8 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award - Wayfinding 
Consultant Contract .............................................................................................. 9 

J-5 4th Annual Regional Arts and Cultural Awards 9 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 9 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 9 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 9 

a) Pure Troy – Mowing Maintenance ........................................................................ 9 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 9 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 9 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 10 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 10 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 10 

O. REPORTS: 10 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 10 

O-2 Department Reports: 10 

a) Building Department Activity Report – January, 2014 ........................................ 10 
b) Troy Historical Society Annual Report FYE June 30, 2013 ................................ 10 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 10 

O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 10 



 

 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 
TROY BUSINESSES): 10 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 10 

Q-1 No Study Items 10 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 10 

R-1 No Closed Session 10 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 10 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 11 

March 3, 2014 Liquor Violation Hearings ............................................................... 11 
March 17, 2014 Liquor Violation Hearings ............................................................. 11 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 11 

March 3, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 11 
March 17, 2014 Regular Meeting .......................................................................... 11 
April 7, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................... 11 
April 14, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................. 11 
May 12, 2014 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 11 
May 19, 2014 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 11 
June 2, 2014 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 11 
June 16, 2014 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 11 
July 7, 2014 Regular Meeting ................................................................................ 11 
July 21, 2014 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 11 
August 11, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 11 
August 25, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 11 
September 8, 2014 Regular Meeting ..................................................................... 11 
September 22, 2014 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 11 
October 6, 2014 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 11 
October 20, 2014 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 11 
November 10, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 11 
November 24, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 11 
December 1, 2014 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 11 
December 15, 2014 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 11 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 11 

February 11, 2014 Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Meeting ....... 11 
April 21, 2014 Special Budget Meeting ................................................................. 11 
April 23, 2014 Special Budget Meeting ................................................................. 11 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a) Mayor Dane Slater 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming  
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of       at the Regular 
City Council Meeting of February 10, 2014, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 2013 “A Healthy Me is Drug Free” Pledges Presented by the Red Ribbon 

Chairperson for Troy Families for Safe Homes and Student Representatives from 
the Troy School District (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) 

 
C-2 City of Troy Receives Government Finance Officers Association’s Distinguished 

Budget Presentation Award (Introduced by: Tom Darling, Financial Services 
Director) 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Professional/Medical Building West of 

Rochester, South Side of Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road) From R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is in receipt of a rezoning request, from R-1C to CB, File Number 
Z-739, as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
and as illustrated in the attached Sketch of Survey. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The proposed rezoning from R-1C to CB is hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Zoning District Map is hereby AMENDED. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
E-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Assisted Living Facilities ZOTA - 246 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Articles 2, 4, and 6 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which 
includes miscellaneous provisions related to assisted living facilities, be AMENDED to read as 
written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 246), City Council Public 
Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes:       
No:       

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 

stewartc
Highlight



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 3 - 

encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 

allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the 
Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If 
the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required 
to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the 
meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, 
Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 4 - 

In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Historic District Commission 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 5 - 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Kuppa Padma 8/13/2011 3/1/2014  
McGee Timothy 8/13/2014 5/15/2015  
Partlan Ann 2/24/2013 3/1/2014 Historical Society Recommendation 
Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 5/15/2015 Historical Society Recommendation 
Vacancy   5/15/2015 Hugh Stephen Doyle resigned 
Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 3/1/2016  

 

 
Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 
Term Expires:  3/1/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy-Hugh Stephen Doyle resigned 
 
Term Expires:  3/1/2017  
 Term currently held by: Barbara Chambers 
 
Term Expires:  3/1/2017  
 Term currently held by: Padma Kuppa 
 
Term Expires:  3/1/2017  
 Term currently held by: Ann Partlan 
   
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire Notes 2 

Knight Barbara 1/15/2016 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 ACAB exp 9/30/2015; Traffic Comm. exp 
1/31/2014 

Viola Vincent 6/13/2014  
 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-3 No Request for Closed Session 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 6 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – February 3, 2014 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Auction Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, On April 16, 2012, Troy City Council approved a two-year contract to provide 
Auction Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low total bidder, 
Chuck Cryderman & Associates LLC of Armada, MI expiring April 15, 2014 (Resolution #2012-
04-079-J-4c.); and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that Chuck Cryderman & Associates LLC has 
successfully provided Auction Services to the City as per all terms and conditions of the 
existing contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chuck Cryderman & Associates LLC. has offered to renew their contract renewal 
for two (2) years under the same terms and conditions as the 2012 contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be 
in the City’s best interest to exercise the option to renew the contract with Chuck Cryderman & 
Associates LLC, to provide Auction Services under the same contract prices, terms, and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 7 - 

conditions for two (2) additional years on an as needed basis; contract expiring April 15, 2016; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City departments are AUTHORIZED to utilize sites such as 
GovDeal.com and PropertyRoom.com at no cost to the City, as appropriate, to dispose of City 
owned surplus items, real estate, equipment and Police forfeiture and confiscated property. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of contract 
documents, insurance certificates and all other specified documents. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 13-6 – 2014 

Water Main Replacement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AWARDS Contract No. 13-6, 2014 Water Main 
Replacement to C&P Construction Company, Inc., 13249 West Star Dr., Shelby Twp., 48315, 
for their low total bid amount of $1,360,627.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements and, if additional work is required such additional work is authorized in an amount 
not to exceed 15% of the total project cost. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Tactical 

Vests 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for one (1) year requirements 
to provide new Tactical Vests for the Police Department, to the low bidder meeting 
specifications, On Duty Gear, LLC, of Port Huron, MI for an estimated total cost of $54,815.00 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 30, 2014, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with the contract expiring March 1, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tax Bill Printing 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 8 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, On March 5, 2012, a two-year contract to provide printing and mailing services for 
the 2012 and 2013 summer and winter tax bills with an option to renew for an additional one (1) 
year tax period was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, Peregrine Services Inc. of 
Monroe, LA (Resolution #2012-03-060-J4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, Peregrine Services Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract with Peregrine Services Inc. to provide tax bill printing and first class mailing 
services for the 2014 summer and winter tax bills under the same prices, terms, and conditions 
for one year at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 22, 2012, to expire 
December 31, 2013, plus the actual cost of first class postage and over-runs not to exceed 5%, 
with a contract expiration of December 31, 2014. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal Program – Upgrade 

Telephone System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City has utilized an Avaya telephone system and related equipment for 
telephone service under a lease agreement since 1996; and 
 
WHEREAS, Upgrading the current system hardware and software that is now eight years old to 
incorporate new technology will provide new features as outlined in the memorandum 
submitted to City Council from the Information Technology Director dated February 4, 2014. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract 
to upgrade the Avaya telephone system hardware and software through a 5-year lease 
arrangement from Avaya Financial Services for an estimated annual cost of $24,184.46 at 
prices contained in quote SQ129802 and as per the State of Michigan MiDeal Contract 
#071B0200268, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a 3-year contract 
with Avaya Inc. of Santa Clara, CA for hardware and software maintenance for an estimated 
annual cost of $33,546.51 at prices detailed and contained in the quote dated December 20, 
2013 and as per the State of Michigan MiDeal Contract #071B0200268, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract with 
Strategic Products and Services of Lansing, MI. for parts and professional services as they may 
relate to the telephone system, on an as needed basis per the State of Michigan MiDeal 
Contract #071B0200268. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 9 - 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award - Wayfinding Consultant 

Contract 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish Wayfinding Consultant Services for the City of Troy 
Public Library is hereby AWARDED to the best value proposer, KMA Design of Carnegie, PA 
as a result of a committee evaluation and review process for an estimated cost of $18,105.00, 
as detailed on the bid tabulation opened December 19, 2013, a copy which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the firm’s submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
J-5 4th Annual Regional Arts and Cultural Awards 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2014-02-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby NOMINATES The Ridgedale Players to represent 
the City of Troy in the Paint Creek Center for the Arts’ “2014 Regional Arts Awards” 
competition.  
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):   
a) Pure Troy – Mowing Maintenance 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 10 - 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
 
O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – January, 2014 
b) Troy Historical Society Annual Report FYE June 30, 2013 
 
O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted 
 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 
TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 
Q-1 No Study Items 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 10, 2014 
 

- 11 - 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
March 3, 2014 .................................................................................... Liquor Violation Hearings 
March 17, 2014 .................................................................................. Liquor Violation Hearings 
 

 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
March 3, 2014 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
March 17, 2014 ................................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
April 7, 2014 ..................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
April 14, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
May 12, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
May 19, 2014 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
June 2, 2014 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
June 16, 2014 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
July 7, 2014 ...................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
July 21, 2014 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 11, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
August 25, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2014 .......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
September 22, 2014 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
October 6, 2014 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
October 20, 2014 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
November 10, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
November 24, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 1, 2014 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 15, 2014 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
February 11, 2014 ...................... Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Meeting 
April 21, 2014 ........................................................................................ Special Budget Meeting 
April 23, 2014 ........................................................................................ Special Budget Meeting 

 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMOO  
 
Date:        February 6, 2014                       
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
   
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 

Subject:  City Of Troy Receives GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
 
 
 
Attached is the press release prepared for the local media to announce the news that 
the City of Troy Receives GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.  The 
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Troy, Michigan for 
its annual budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013.   

Due to the difficult economic downturn of 2008, we have not applied for this budget 
award since Fiscal year beginning July 2009.  We are back on track, and with this latest 
Budget Preparation Award, the City of Troy has now received the Triple Crown in 
Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association.  

 The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

 The Popular Annual Financial Report  

 The Budget Preparation 

 

Troy is one of very few Michigan cities to receive all three nationally recognized awards. 
 
We have also attached a copy of the new Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) for 
the fiscal year ending 2013.  This document will be mailed to all Troy households via 
insertion in the Troy Times on February 20, 2014, and also submitted to the GFOA for 
an upcoming award. 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02



    PRESS RELEASE 
 

                                                                                          Contact:  Cynthia Stewart 
Community Affairs Director 

500 West Big Beaver 
Troy MI 48084 

ph 248.524.1147 
fax 248.524.3499 

  
 
 

FOR RELEASE:  February 6, 2014 
 
 

City Of Troy Receives GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
 

City Has Now Received the Triple Crown in Financial Reporting 
 
 
(TROY, MI) – The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) is 
presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Troy, Michigan for its annual budget for 
the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013.   
 
This award represents a significant achievement by the City of Troy.  It reflects the commitment of the 
governing body and staff to meeting the highest principles of governmental budgeting.  In order to receive the 
budget award, the entity had to satisfy nationally recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation.  
These guidelines are designed to assess how well an entity’s budget serves as:  
 
     ● a policy document 
     ● a financial plan 
     ● an operations guide 
     ● a communications device 
 
Budget documents must be rated “proficient” in all four categories, and the fourteen mandatory criteria within 
those categories, to receive the award.   
 
Due to the difficult economic downturn of 2008, we have not applied for this budget award since Fiscal year 
beginning July 2009.  We are back on track, and with this latest Budget Preparation Award, the City of Troy 
has now received the Triple Crown in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association:  

 The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

 The Popular Annual Financial Report  

 The Budget Preparation 
 
For budgets including fiscal periods 2012, 1,340 entities received the Award.  Award recipients have pioneered 
efforts to improve the quality of budgeting and provide an excellent example for other governments throughout 
North America.  The GFOA is a nonprofit professional association serving 17,800 government finance 
professionals throughout North America.  The GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Awards Program is 
the only national awards program in governmental budgeting.   
 

#  #  # 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: February 5, 2014 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – Proposed 

Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of Colebrook (3545 
Rochester Road), Section 22, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB 
(Community Business) District 

 
The applicant, MGM Restoration, seeks a rezoning of the subject parcel from R-1C One 
Family Residential District to CB Community Business District.  The vacant lot is approximately 
10,500 square feet in area.  The applicant indicated their intent to construct a two-story office 
building on the site.  Offices are permitted by right in the CB district; the present R-1C district 
does not permit offices.  Maximum building height in the proposed CB district is 2 stories/30 
feet which is consistent with the abutting R-1C district. 
 
The Planning Commission considered this rezoning on February 14, 2012 and recommended 
denial of the application, based on the potential for negative impacts on the residential 
neighborhood to the west.  The applicant was encouraged to combine the subject property with 
the abutting property to the east.  The applicant has done so, after a lengthy bidding and 
acquisition process. 
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Rochester Road.  A description of this classification is 
attached.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on January 14, 2014 and 
recommended approval of the rezoning with an 8-0 vote. 
 
City Management recommends approval of the proposed rezoning from R-1C to CB. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Agenda item from January 14, 2014 Planning Commission meeting. 
3. Draft minutes from January 14, 2014 Planning Commission meeting (excerpt). 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 739  Professional Medical Building  Sec 22\2013 Application\CC Memo_Public Hearing 2014 02 10.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
E-01



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

17,138

1:

Feet17,1380 8,569



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

892

1:

Feet8920 446



PC 2014.01.14 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – 

Proposed Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of 
Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road), Section 22, From R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District 

 
The applicant, MGM Restoration, seeks a rezoning of the subject parcel from R-1C One 
Family Residential District to CB Community Business District.  The vacant lot is 
approximately 10,500 square feet in area.  The applicant indicated their intent to 
construct a two-story office building on the site.  Offices are permitted by right in the CB 
district; the present R-1C district does not permit offices.   
 
The Planning Commission considered this rezoning on February 14, 2012 and 
recommended denial of the application, based on the potential for negative impacts on 
the residential neighborhood to the west.  The applicant was encouraged to combine 
the subject property with the abutting property to the east.  The applicant has done so, 
after a lengthy bidding and acquisition process. 
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Rochester Road.  A description of this 
classification is attached.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the January 14, 2014 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4. Concept drawing 
5. Minutes from February 14, 2012 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 739  Professional Medical Building  Sec 22\2013 Application\PC Memo 01 14 14.doc 
 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – Proposed 
Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of Colebrook (3545 
Rochester Road), Section 22, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB 
(Community Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to CB rezoning request, located west of Rochester on the south side of 
Colebrook, within Section 22, being approximately 10,500 square feet in size, be 
approved for the following reasons: 

1) The parcels were combined to create one developable parcel for the purpose of 
building a medical office.  Combining the parcels creates a larger developable 
parcel that permits a property buffer and transition between the single-family 
neighborhood to the west and Rochester Road.  

2) The request complies with the Master Plan 
3) The CB, Commercial Business District would permit greater flexibility in use and 

development of the property.  
4) The site has been vacant for single-family residential use.  
5) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
6) The site is adequately served with municipal water and sewer. 

 
Yes:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 739  Professional Medical Building  Sec 22\2012 Application\2013 Application\Proposed PC 
Resolution 01 14 2014.doc 



Z 739 Professional/Medical Building

1: 1,015

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

850169 169Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/10/2014

Legend:
Street Name Text



Z 739  Professional/Medical Building

1: 902

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

750150 150Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

12/9/2013

Legend:
Street Name Text
Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MR) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MF) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



103

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Rochester Road: 

Green Corridor

Regional model for a green corridor• 
A strong focus on access management• 
Heightened emphasis on strong stormwater • 
management techniques
Retail catering to regional traffi  c• 
Innovative site design techniques applied • 
through PUD use to allow for redevelopment 
for shallow lots

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffi  c 
causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road 
north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of 
Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and offi  ce near 
the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.     

If Rochester Road is to have a defi ned 

role and pleasing character in the City, it 

must undergo a signifi cant transformation 

over time.  Ultimately, the Rochester Road 
Corridor will become a regional showcase 
for eff ective stormwater management and 
enhancement of the natural environment, while 
encouraging a combination of high-quality 
land uses.   Eff ective landscaping focused on 

native plantings, and improved land use and 
access management along Rochester will create 
a green corridor that provides a high level 
of service for motorists, and which provides 
an eff ective natural buff er between high 
traffi  c volumes and people visiting adjacent 
properties.  The creation of this green corridor 
would occur primarily in the right-of-way along 
road frontages and in the median of a future 
boulevard.  

While the emphasis on innovative 

stormwater management is specifi cally called 

on for the Rochester Road Corridor, new 

low-impact techniques are to be encouraged 

elsewhere throughout the City of Troy.  As 
noted in Chapter 7, innovative stormwater 
management is a priority for the community.  
Rochester Road will play an important role in 
this City-wide initiative by proving a regional 
showcase for such techniques.

New construction along the corridor may 
include detention and retention basins 
that work together from site-to-site with 
other features to create a continuous, linear 
landscape feature.  By connecting properties, 
the basins create visual relief from traffi  c.  
Low impact development methods will 

be used throughout the corridor to fi lter 

stormwater runoff .   Rochester Road will also be 
characterized by eff ective new signage, high-
quality lighting, and eff ective, complementary 
site and architectural design. 

Uses along Rochester Road will include a 
variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” 
pattern where the most intense mixed-use or 
exclusively non-residential development will 
occur near the Neighborhood Nodes situated 
along its main intersections.  Lower-impact 
uses, such as small scale retail or condominiums 
should be encouraged along the corridor 
frontage between these nodes.

ROCHESTER ROAD



104 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Commercial strip development should be • 
limited and gradually replaced with mixed 
use.

Commercial development should be • 
encouraged to expand in the form of dense 
multi-story mixed-use concentrations 
at major intersections.  Concentrations 
are limited to within 1,000 feet of the 
intersection.  

The areas between nodes should develop as • 
lower-rise offi  ce and multiple-family.    The 
height diff erences encourage a visual “pulse.”

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Parking areas should be within rear yards • 
or interior parts of the site.  A single row of 
parking may be appropriate in front and 
exterior side yards in limited applications.

Parking will connect to adjacent sites, • 
eventually linking several developments 
with a rear access lane.  The number of 
drives connecting to Rochester Road should 
be minimized.

Defi ned internal walks will connect the • 
businesses and buildings together.

Internal walks will be connected to the • 
public sidewalk system.

Buildings will be separated from street traffi  c • 
by a greenbelt or sculptural storm water 
detention basin. 

Height and size of signage will be reduced • 
to contain visual clutter.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

The height at nodes will be multi-story not • 
exceeding four stories.       

The height between nodes should not • 
exceed two stories.

Ground level stories should be, at a • 
minimum, twelve feet in height; with large 
expanses of transparent glass at intersection 
nodes.  

Fenestration for the ground level of • 
buildings in nodes will be accentuated 
through the use of awnings, overhangs or 
trim detailing.  

Design for a Rain Garden in Troy; City of Troy

Lovell Pond in Troy; an example of an innovative, urban 
stormwater basin; Photo by Jennifer Lawson



 

 

 
 Date: February 9, 2012 
  January 7, 2014 
 
 

 Rezoning Analysis   
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
Applicant: Steve Muci 
  
Project Name: 970 Colebrook Professional/Medical Building Rezoning 
 
Location: 3545 Rochester Road (formerly 970 Colebrook) 
 
Current Zoning: R-1C, Single Family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Rezoning to CB, Commercial Business 
 
Required Information: As noted in review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The applicant is seeking the rezoning of a portion of 3545 Rochester Road to develop a medical office 
building.  3545 Rochester has split zoning.  The eastern section of the parcel that fronts on Rochester 
Road is zoned CB, Commercial Business.  The western portion, which was formally 970 Colebrook, has 
R1-C zoning.  In 2012, the applicant had requested a rezoning of 970 Colebrook.  The Planning 
Commission recommended denial of the rezoning request and recommended that the applicant 
combine with the lot on Rochester to create one developable parcel.    
 
In 2013, the applicant combined the two parcels to create one developable parcel for the purpose of 
building a medical office.  A medical office cannot be built on the combined parcel because the western 
portion of the parcel is zoned R-1C, Single Family Residential District.  The applicant seeks a rezoning of 
the western portion of the parcel to CB, Community Business District.  If the rezoning is approved, the 
applicant will submit for a site plan review for the medical office building.     
 
 
 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 2 

 

 
 
ZONING and LAND USE 
 
To the west is a single family home, to the south and east are commercial projects, and to the north is 
the walled parking lot of a former office building that was approved for a Gaucho Steakhouse 
development.  The zoning, land use and Master Plan designations for the surrounding parcels are shown 
in the table below:  
 

 Zoning Land Use Master Plan 

North 
P, Parking and GB, General 
Business 

Parking / Commercial  Rochester Road 

South CB, Commercial Business Commercial  Rochester Road 
East CB, Commercial Business Commercial Rochester Road 
West R-1C, One-Family Residential  Single-family homes Single Family Residential 

 
Since the western parcel has been combined with the portion of the parcel on the Rochester Road, a 
rezoning would be consistent with surrounding properties.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
PREVIOUS PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission first considered this rezoning in 2012.  Due to potential impacts upon the 
interior neighborhood including creating an additional curb-cut on Colebrook the application was 

• Parcel portion zoned CB 
 
• Parcel portion zoned R1-C 

(formerly 970 Colebrook) 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 3 

recommended for denial.  In the deliberation, the Planning Commission noted that they would support 
the rezoning if the applicant were able to obtain the corner parcel and combine to create one parcel.   
 
In our 2012 staff report we noted that redevelopment of this site for non-residential purposes is 
appropriate only if the following conditions are met: (1) The proposed use and design does not have a 
significant negative impact on the abutting residential property and neighborhood; and (2) The site is 
appropriately screened from the abutting residential property.  By combing the two parcels into one 
developable parcel, the applicant is able to mitigate the two aforementioned concerns.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
MASTER PLAN 
 
The subject site lies in the Rochester Road future land use category, on the edge of the Single-Family 
Residential category. The intent of the Rochester Road future land use category is described in the 
Master Plan as follows: 
 

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffic causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and office near the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.      
 
Uses along Rochester Road will include a variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” pattern 
where the most intense mixed-use or exclusively non-residential development will occur near the 
Neighborhood Nodes situated along its main intersections.  Lower-impact uses, such as small 
scale retail or condominiums should be encouraged along the corridor frontage between these 
nodes. 

 
The Rochester Road category is designed to have “soft edges,” that is, it does not closely follow parcel 
lines and is intended to be applied to a wide variety of sites having access to Rochester Road.  Now that 
the western portion of the parcel has been combined with the corner parcel on Rochester Road, the 
combined parcel will provide an appropriate transition between Rochester Road and the adjacent 
single-family residential neighborhood. The proposed rezoning to CB, Commercial Business is consistent 
with the overall goals of the Master Plan and the specific recommendations for this area.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 
The applicant has submitted a conceptual site plan.  The submitted site plan is not binding but portrays 
the conceptual layout that the applicant proposes to develop the site.  The applicant has addressed 
many of the concerns of our previous review and the Planning Commission including: 

• Providing only one curb cut on Colebrook 
• Placing the building adjacent to Rochester Road 
• Placing parking in the rear of the site 
• Landscape buffer along western (residential) property line 
• Future cross-access to property to the south 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 4 

 
Though conceptual site plan and not binding there are requirements in the Zoning Ordinance that will 
be addressed through the Site Plan review process such as screening and buffering that ensure 
protection of the adjacent single-family properties.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
The site is not previously developed, but is essentially devoid of significant natural features.  There are 
some existing overgrown landscaping materials. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
STANDARDS OF REVIEW 
 
Section 16.03 C. states that a rezoning may only be approved upon a finding and determination that all 
of the following are satisfied: 
 

1. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is in material 
conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following: 

a. A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
b. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
c. An error in the Master Plan. 

2. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity. 

3. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development. 

4. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, or welfare. 

5. The rezoning will ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 

The rezoning of the subject site to CB, Commercial Business is in compliance with the City of Troy Master 
Plan.  Further, it is consistent with the development pattern of this area of the City, and will not be a 
detriment to the public health, safety or welfare, and will not burden public services and facilities. 

Items to be Addressed: None. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
We would recommend approval of the subject rezoning for the following reasons: 

1) The parcels were combined to create one developable parcel for the purpose of building a 
medical office.  Combining the parcels creates a larger developable parcel that permits a 
property buffer and transition between the single-family neighborhood to the west and 
Rochester Road.  

2) The request complies with the Master Plan 



970 Colebrook Rezoning   January 7, 2014 

 5 

3) The CB, Commercial Business District would permit greater flexibility in use and development of 
the property.  

4) The site has been vacant for single-family residential use.  
5) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
6) The site is adequately served with municipal water and sewer. 

   
   

 
   
   

 



PARKING REQUIREMENTS

OFFICE: 

3381 / 300 = 12 CARS

MEICAL OFFICE:

3381 / 200 = 17 CARS

TOTAL REQUIRED: 29 CARS

TOTAL PROVIDED: 29 CARS

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 40'-0"

N



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 14, 2012 
  
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – 
Proposed Professional/Medical Building, South side of Colebrook, West of 
Rochester Road between Big Beaver and Wattles (970 Colebrook), Section 22, 
From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) 
District 
 
Zak Branigan summarized the rezoning report. 
 
There was general discussion of this item. 
 
Artur Kokaj, 17106 Addington Drive, Commerce Township, MI, representing the 
applicant, discussed the project with the Planning Commission. 
 
The conditional rezoning process was discussed with the applicant. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Dennis Bushon, 3515 Rochester Road, encouraged the applicant to combine the 
subject parcel with the abutting parcel to the east, located on the corner of 
Colebrook and Rochester Road. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Schultz stated the rezoning had the potential to be detrimental to the 
residential neighborhood to the east. 
 
Chair Maxwell agreed with Mr. Schultz and added that he had concern with the 
potential negative impacts on the elementary school located in the neighborhood.  
He stated he would support a rezoning if the subject parcel were to be combined 
with the property fronting on Rochester Road. 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-02-008 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to CB rezoning request, located west of Rochester on the 
south side of Colebrook, within Section 22, being approximately 10,500 square 
feet in size, be denied. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Ullmann 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  JANUARY 14, 2014 
   
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 739) – Proposed 

Professional/Medical Building, West of Rochester, South side of Colebrook (3545 
Rochester Road), Section 22, From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB 
(Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed Rezoning Request application, stating the applicant 
acquired the parcel to combine it with the abutting parcel to the east, a recommendation 
of the Planning Commission when it recommended denial of the initial rezoning request 
on February 14, 2012.  Mr. Savidant said it is recommended to approve the Rezoning 
Request application for reasons as specified in the Planning Consultant report, dated 
January 7, 2014.   He noted the conceptual site plan provided by the applicant is not 
binding and will be considered at a future date should the Rezoning Request go forward. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Potential to split parcels in the future. 
• Proposed curb cuts. 
 
Artur Kokaj of 17106 Addington Drive, Commerce Township, was present to represent 
the applicant.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01-004 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to CB rezoning request, located west of Rochester on the south side of 
Colebrook, within Section 22, being approximately 10,500 square feet in size, be 
approved for the following reasons: 
 

1) The parcels were combined to create one developable parcel for the purpose of 
building a medical office.  Combining the parcels creates a larger developable parcel 
that permits a property buffer and transition between the single-family neighborhood 
to the west and Rochester Road.  

2) The request complies with the Master Plan 
3) The CB, Commercial Business District, would permit greater flexibility in use and 

development of the property.  
4) The site has been vacant for single-family residential use.  
5) The rezoning would be compatible with surrounding zoning and land use.  
6) The site is adequately served with municipal water and sewer. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



stewartc
Text Box
E-01 Sketch of Survey



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: February 5, 2014 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number: ZOTA 246) 

– Assisted Living Facilities 
 
The Oakland Troy Senior Project assisted living facility received Preliminary Site Plan Approval from 
the Planning Commission on November 26, 2013.  During the site plan review process, many 
residents expressed concern regarding the potential of an assisted living facility being developed 
within abutting single-family residential neighborhoods.  City Council members expressed the same 
concern during numerous public meetings.  Based on these comments, the Planning Commission 
developed a draft text amendment that is intended to ensure that assisted living facilities are 
compatible with adjacent single family residential neighborhoods. 
 
Draft amendments include the following: 

 Revised the definition of “assisted living” 
 Revised Schedule of Uses to permit assisted living facilities by Special Use Approval in the 

R-1A through R-1E, RT and CF districts 
 The minimum lot area shall be 3 acres 
 Frontage on and access to a major arterial is required 
 A 50-foot greenbelt is required when adjacent to any land zoned or used for residential 

development 
 
The attached Planning Commission item provides additional background. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on January 14, 2014, and recommended 
approval of the text amendment with an 8-0 vote. 
 
City Management recommends approval of the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Public Hearing Draft 
2. Planning Commission item from January 14, 2014 Regular meeting 
3. Planning Commission minutes from January 14, 2014 Regular meeting (excerpt) 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\CC Memo_Public Hearing 2014 02 10.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
E-02



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows 
 
Revise the following definition in Section 2.02 to read as follows:  
 
ASSISTED LIVING: A dependent elderly housing facility without cooking facilities in 
individual rooms and with only central dining service. Limited medical care  is available, 
including memory care, may be provided.  
 
 
Revise the following table in Section 4.21 to read as follows:  
 

 
Revise Section 6.25 to read as follows: 
 

A. The maximum allowable density varies by housing type, but shall not exceed the 
following: 

1. Dwellings may be provided for as single-family detached, two-family or 
multiple-family units. When such dwellings contain kitchens, the minimum 
site area requirements for purposes of calculating density shall be as 
follows:  

i. Dwelling Unit Size Site Area/Unit (Square Feet)  
ii. Efficiency/one (1) bedroom 2,000  
iii. Two (2) bedroom 2,500  
iv. Each additional bedroom 500 additional 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P, S P, 
S 

P P NP P, 
S 

NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 



2. Where facilities do not contain kitchen facilities within individual dwelling 
units, the site area per bed shall be one thousand five hundred (1,500) 
square feet. 

B. Height, lot coverage and setback requirements of the MF Districts as set forth in 
Section 4.08, Multiple Family Residential Requirements shall apply. 

C. Parking is not allowed in any required front yard. Parking is permitted in side and 
rear yards provided a minimum twenty (20) foot setback is observed. 

D. The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public 
streets, residentially zoned or used property, and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet. 
Façade articulation or architectural design variations for building walls facing the 
street are required to ensure that the building is not monotonous in appearance. 
Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); cornices, varying building 
materials or pilasters shall be used to break up the mass of a single building. 

E. The drop-off / pick-up of residents shall be provided at the front entrance of the 
building with a covered canopy. 

F. 
G. 

The minimum lot area shall be three (3) acres.   

H. 

Frontage on a major arterial street shall be required.  All site access shall be 
provided on a major arterial street. 

 

A 50-foot greenbelt buffer shall be provided adjacent to any land zoned or used 
for residential purposes. Such greenbelt shall be maintained as landscaped open 
space and shall not include any buildings, parking, or drive-aisles.  

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be published within 15 days of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\ZOTA 246 CC Public Hearing Draft 01 29 2014.doc 



  PC 2014.01.14 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: January 9, 2014 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File 

Number ZOTA 246) – Assisted Living Facilities 
 
 
During the site plan review process for the Oakland Troy Senior Project assisted living 
facility, many residents expressed concern regarding the potential of an assisted living 
facility being developed in inappropriate areas, specifically within single-family 
residential neighborhoods.  City Council members expressed the same concern during 
numerous public meetings.  Based on these comments, the development of draft text 
amendment language is considered a priority by City Council. 
 
The attached memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
issue.  The Planning Commission discussed this memo at the December 10, 2013 
Planning Commission Regular meeting.  The board agreed with the recommendations 
in the memo and directed the Planning Department to put the suggested revisions in 
ordinance form.   
 
The draft text amendment is attached.  The attached map identifies potential assisted 
living facility sites, should the draft text amendment be approved. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Report prepared by CWA 
2. Draft text amendment 
3. Map 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\PC Memo 01 14 2013.doc 



 
PROPOSED RESOLUTION 

 
 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 246) – Assisted Living 
Facilities 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles 2, 4, and 6 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes 
miscellaneous provisions related to assisted living facilities, be amended as printed on 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\Proposed PC Resolution 01 14 2014.doc 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: December 2, 2013 
 
RE: Assisted Living Zoning Regulations  
 
 
Due to questions regarding compatibility between Assisted Living Facilities and adjacent single-family 
properties, the City Council has requested that the Planning Commission review potential Zoning 
Ordinance amendments.  The City Council has requested the Planning Commission to consider these 
amendments expeditiously so that regulations may be in place prior to the submission of another 
Assisted Living Facility application.  This memo presents recommendations of additional regulations 
based on review of current regulations, review of best practices, and direction from the City Council and 
Planning Commission.   
 

CURRENT REGULATIONS:  
 
The current regulations for Assisted Living are controlled by the Use Table as set forth in Section 4.21; 
Specific Use Standards set forth in Section 6.25; and height, lot coverage and setback requirements of 
the Multiple Family Districts as set forth in Section 4.08.   
 
Regulations Summary: 

• Permitted use in R1 A-E, Single-Family Residential; RT, One-Family Attached Residential;  MF, 
Multi-Family Residential; UR, Urban Residential; CF, Community Facility;  CB, Commercial 
Business; GB, General Business; IB, Integrated Business, and OM, Office Mixed Use.   

• Density requirements: 
o 2,000 sq/ft lot area per unit for one bedroom  
o 2,500 sq/ft lot area per unit for two bedrooms 

• Maximum height: 2 stories and 25-feet 
• Setbacks:  

o Front, Side, and Rear: 30 feet 
• Lot Coverage: 35% 
• Parking Locations 

o Not permitted in front yard 
o Setback at least 20 feet from side and rear property lines 

 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
A tenant of the Zoning Ordinance is the protection of single-family residential properties.  In order to 
better protect single-family residential properties, we recommend the Planning Commission consider 
the following amendments to regulate Assisted Living Facilities: 
 

1. Amend Definition of Assisted Living to Include Memory Care.  Adding memory care to the 
Assisted Living definition would clarify the components that are permitted under Assisted Living 
use category.     
 

2. Require Assisted Living as a Special Use in all R1 Districts.  A Special Use permit requires 
notification and a public hearing.  Furthermore, a Special Use permit allows the Planning 
Commission to review the project under the Special Use standards, which ensure mitigation of 
impacts upon adjacent properties.    
 

3. Require that all Assisted Living facilities be located adjacent to major arterial and that all site 
access is located off a major arterial.   Such requirement would 1) ensure that these facilities are 
located on major mile roads, which can accommodate increased site activity including traffic; 2) 
ensure that those facilities are not located in the interior of a single-family subdivision; and 3) 
reduce neighborhood cut-through traffic.  
 

4. Require a minimum of three (3) acres per site.  Requiring a minimum of three (3) acres per site 
will ensure that sites are large enough to provide adequate transitions, buffers, and setbacks.   
In discussion with Assisted Living developers and operators, they note that sites less than three 
(3) acres are typically not market feasible for such use due to their limited size.  
 

5. Require a 50-foot greenbelt buffer adjacent to any land zoned or used for residential purposes.  
This buffer is similar to what is required for Places of Worship.  Such buffer will provide an 
appropriate transition to adjacent single-family properties.   

 
The attached map indicates the potential properties upon which an Assisted Living Facility could be 
developed. 
 

RECOMMENDED TROY ZONING AMENDMENT: 
 
New language is underlined.  Removed language is struck through.  
 
Section 2.02: Definition:  
 
ASSISTED LIVING: A dependent elderly housing facility without cooking facilities and only central dining 
service. Limited medical care, including memory care, may be provided. is available. 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

 
 
Section 4.21: Use Table:  
 
The table is as follows:  
 

 
Section 6.25: Specific Use Standards: 
 

A. The maximum allowable density varies by housing type, but shall not exceed the following: 
1. Dwellings may be provided for as single-family detached, two-family or multiple-family 

units. When such dwellings contain kitchens, the minimum site area requirements for 
purposes of calculating density shall be as follows:  

i. Dwelling Unit Size Site Area/Unit (Square Feet)  
ii. Efficiency/one (1) bedroom 2,000  

iii. Two (2) bedroom 2,500  
iv. Each additional bedroom 500 additional 

2. Where facilities do not contain kitchen facilities within individual dwelling units, the site 
area per bed shall be one thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet. 

B. Height, lot coverage and setback requirements of the MF Districts as set forth in Section 4.08, 
Multiple Family Residential Requirements shall apply. 

C. Parking is not allowed in any required front yard. Parking is permitted in side and rear yards 
provided a minimum twenty (20) foot setback is observed. 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P, S P, S P P NP P, S NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 

For Comparison Purposes Only 
Multiple-
family dwell-
ings (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Convalescent 
centers 

NP NP S S NP P NP P P P P P NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, family 
home 

P P P P P P NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, Small 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, large 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, con-
gregate 
facility 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

D. The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets, 
residentially zoned or used property, and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet. Façade articulation or 
architectural design variations for building walls facing the street are required to ensure that the 
building is not monotonous in appearance. Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); 
cornices, varying building materials or pilasters shall be used to break up the mass of a single 
building. 

E. The drop-off / pick-up of residents shall be provided at the front entrance of the building with a 
covered canopy. 

F. 
G. 

The minimum lot area shall be three (3) acres.   

H. 

Frontage on major arterial street shall be required.  All site access must be provided on a major 
arterial street. 

 

A 50-foot greenbelt buffer shall be provided adjacent to any land zoned or used for residential 
purposes. Such greenbelt shall be maintained as landscaped open space and shall not include 
any buildings, parking, or drive-aisles.  

 
Section 4.08: Multiple Family:  
 
No recommended amendments.   

 
 

 
  
Attachment: 
1. Map 



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows 
 
Revise the following definition in Section 2.02 to read as follows:  
 
ASSISTED LIVING: A dependent elderly housing facility without cooking facilities in 
individual rooms and with only central dining service. Limited medical care  is available, 
including memory care, may be provided.  
 
 
Revise the following table in Section 4.21 to read as follows:  
 

 
Revise Section 6.25 to read as follows: 
 

A. The maximum allowable density varies by housing type, but shall not exceed the 
following: 

1. Dwellings may be provided for as single-family detached, two-family or 
multiple-family units. When such dwellings contain kitchens, the minimum 
site area requirements for purposes of calculating density shall be as 
follows:  

i. Dwelling Unit Size Site Area/Unit (Square Feet)  
ii. Efficiency/one (1) bedroom 2,000  
iii. Two (2) bedroom 2,500  
iv. Each additional bedroom 500 additional 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P, S P, 
S 

P P NP P, 
S 

NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 



2. Where facilities do not contain kitchen facilities within individual dwelling 
units, the site area per bed shall be one thousand five hundred (1,500) 
square feet. 

B. Height, lot coverage and setback requirements of the MF Districts as set forth in 
Section 4.08, Multiple Family Residential Requirements shall apply. 

C. Parking is not allowed in any required front yard. Parking is permitted in side and 
rear yards provided a minimum twenty (20) foot setback is observed. 

D. The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public 
streets, residentially zoned or used property, and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet. 
Façade articulation or architectural design variations for building walls facing the 
street are required to ensure that the building is not monotonous in appearance. 
Building wall offsets (projections and recesses); cornices, varying building 
materials or pilasters shall be used to break up the mass of a single building. 

E. The drop-off / pick-up of residents shall be provided at the front entrance of the 
building with a covered canopy. 

F. 
G. 

The minimum lot area shall be three (3) acres.   

H. 

Frontage on a major arterial street shall be required.  All site access shall be 
provided on a major arterial street. 

 

A 50-foot greenbelt buffer shall be provided adjacent to any land zoned or used 
for residential purposes. Such greenbelt shall be maintained as landscaped open 
space and shall not include any buildings, parking, or drive-aisles.  

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be published within 15 days of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 246  Assisted Living Facilities\ZOTA 246 PC Public Hearing Draft 01 14 2013.doc 



Based on proposed minimum development standards including location on major arterial and 3-acre minimum site

I
12/04/2013

Legend
Special Use
Permitted Use
Major Arterial

POTENTIAL ASSISTED LIVING FACILITY SITES



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL  JANUARY 14, 2014 
   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number 

ZOTA 246) – Assisted Living Facilities 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed Zoning Ordinance language.  
 
There was discussion on: 
• Intent of Zoning Ordinance relating to distinction between residential and multi 

family districts for Special Use Approval requirement. 
• Mechanism in place to protect single family residential districts with Special 

Use Approval requirement. 
• Map depicting potential assisted living facility sites. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2014-01-005 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 2, 4, and 6 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, 
which includes miscellaneous provisions related to assisted living facilities, be 
amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  January 29, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Auction Services 
 
 
History 
On April 16, 2012, Troy City Council approved a two-year contract to provide Auction Services with 
an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low total bidder, Chuck Cryderman & Associates 
LLC of Armada, MI (Resolution #2012-04-079-J-4c.)  
 
The City uses the Auction Service to dispose of City owned surplus items, real estate, equipment and 
Police forfeiture and confiscated property. The auction contract is set up so that the buyer is 
responsible for all fees associated with the auction service, except to inventory items and provide 
printed inventory reports if needed, at a cost of $25.00 per hour.  This resolution also included the 
ability to use other trade publications or online auction websites to market specialty pieces of 
equipment as long as there is no cost to the City. 
 
Purchasing 
Purchasing has analyzed market trends and found the City would not benefit from soliciting new bids 
for Auction Services.  Chuck Cryderman & Associates, LLC, have successfully auctioned items in the 
past for the City.  The auctions were run very professionally with positive results.  The City benefits by 
marketing specialty pieces of equipment through trade publications and auction websites; such as 
GovDeals.com and PropertyRoom.com.  PropertyRoom.com is a site that specifically specializes in 
disposing of Police forfeiture items.  Additionally, these service contracts are available and predicated 
on National Joint Power Alliance (NJPA) Cooperative Pricing. 
 
Financial 
Funds for this contract will be covered by buyer’s premium placed on all auctioned items. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew the contract for Auction Services for 
two (2) additional years for the City of Troy municipal offices, to the low bidder, Chuck Cryderman & 
Associates, LLC of Armada, MI, and to utilize online Auction Services which also includes sites such 
as GovDeal.com and PropertyRoom.com at no cost to the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 Auction Services 12-03  

stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 3, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution #1: Award to Low Bidder 
  Contract 13-6 – 2014 Water Main Replacement 
   
History 

Old cast iron water mains in the northwest corner of the City within Section 7 have exceeded their service life 
and/or are undersized.  This project will replace and upsize these mains to meet current size and fire flow 
standards while eliminating costly main breaks that are common with older water mains.  Work will include 
replacing the existing 6” and 8” water mains on the streets noted below with 8” & 12” ductile iron water mains. 

• Andover Ct., Havorford, Huntersgate, Fox Chase, Devonwood, Lenox and Sussex Streets 
• Wattles road between Adams and Butternut Hill  and Westwood 

The work is anticipated to start in March and be completed in June. 

Purchasing 

Bids were received and publicly read on January 29, 2014.  The low bid of $1,360,627.00, as submitted by 
C&P Construction Company, Inc. can be seen in the attached tabulation of bids. The engineer’s estimate at the 
time of bidding was $1,372,000.  The low bid is therefore $11,373 or 0.83% below the engineer’s estimate. 
 
Work was competitively bid and publicly opened with eight (8) bidders responding.  The award is contingent 
upon submission of proper proposal and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
specified requirements. 
 
Financial 
Funds for this work are included in the Water Fund.  The budgeted amount includes funds for construction, 
inspection and contingencies. 
 
Recommendation 

It is recommended that City Council award the 2014 Water Main Replacement contract to C&P Construction 
Company, Inc., 13249 West Star Dr., Shelby Twp., 48315 for their low total bid of $1,360,627.00.  In addition, 
we are requesting authorization to approve additional work, if needed, not to exceed 15% of the original project 
cost due to unknown conflicts with existing underground utilities that may arise during construction.   
 
Enterprise funds are being used to fund this project; enterprise funds can only be used for operation, 
maintenance and improvements to the water system. 
 
  
G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2013\Contract 13-06 - 2014 Water Main Replacement\Corespondence\Bid AwardR1.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04b





E
V

A
N

S
W

O
O

D

RANIERI

ALFRED

F
L

O
R

A

M
A

R
I

L
Y

N

M
A

C
O

M
B
 

C
O
.

1

NORMANDY

DRYDEN

S
I

L
V

E
R

S
T

O
N

E

B
R
I

T
T

A
N

Y

SAXONY

TUSCANY

T
R

E
E

HARNED

JARMAN

BURDIC

CHANCERY

GULLIVER

E
D
I

T
H

R
A

V
E

N
N

A

STIRLING

S
H

E
L

L
D

R
A

K
E

CAMBRIA

CADMUS

B
A

R
R

B
E

A
U

E
C

K
E

R
M

A
N

HARTWIG

2

F
E

R
R

Y
D

R
A
I

N

S
E

N
A

T
E

CONGRESS

C
O

N
G

R
E

S
S

EMERALD

LAKE

W
A
L

K
E

R
L

A
K
E

P
E
B
B
L
E

L
A

K
E

S
H

O
R

E
S

CHANCERY

W
A

L
K

E
R

WALKER

A
T

K
I

N
S

E
M

E
R

A
L

D
L

A
K

E

W
A
L

K
E
R

SANDY

POINT

S
A

N
D

S
H

O
R

E
S

P
E
B
B
L
E

P
O
I

N
T

C
R

E
S

E
N

T
 
 

W
A

Y

JANDALE

CRYSTAL

LAKE

LYSTER

THREE

L
Y

S
T

E
R

LAKES

EMERALD LAKE

EMERALD

LITTLE

CREEK

N
O

R
T

O
N

SOUTH

LOVELL

BOOTH

M
O

N
T

C
L

A
I

R

D
O

N
A

L
D

S
O

N

W
E

S
T

A
W

A
Y

LESDALE

HURST

OTTAWA

HANNAH

DE ETTA

MARENGO

DONALDSONO
T

T
A

W
A

3

M
E

R
R
I

C
K

N
E

W
T

O
N

G
L

E
N

D
A

L
E

BRIDGE PARK

SELBY

KEATON

SERENITY

GEORGIAN

SCONE

S
E

R
E

N
E

T
Y

H
I

G
H

O
A

K
S

OAKLAND

W
H
I
T

ING

SERENITY

HURST

LOVELL

V
E

R
N

M
O

O
R F
R

E
D

M
O

O
R

BLVD

PHEASANTRUN

S
T
.

C
L

A
I

R

B
L

A
C

K
W

A
L

L

N
I

L
E

S

ASPINWALL

H
O

U
G

H
T

E
N

TROYVALLY

C
A

N
M

O
O

R

H
E

R
B

M
O

O
R

E
L

M
O

O
R

B
R

O
O

K
I

N
G

S

R
I

V
E

R
T

O
N

BALDWIN

JORDAN

J
O

R
D

A
N

WESLEY

4

F
O

R
E
S

T

C
R

E
E

K
L

A
K

E

MOUNTAIN

PI
NOAK

BASSWOOD

R
E

D
B

U
D

ELM

LOCUST
MOUNTAIN

B
A

S
S

W
O

O
D

N
A

P
I

E
R

C
R

E
S

T
V
I

E
W

COUNTRY

JOSHUA

W
O

O
D

C
R

E
S

T

JOSHUA

FALCON

ELSEY

L
E

D
W
I

N

D
E

N
T

O
N

D
E

N
T

O
N

G
A
R

D
E

N

PROSPER

KINLOCK

BARTON WAY

F
O

R
E
S
T
 
P

A
R

K

T
R

E
E
 

K
N

O
L

L

DENTON

5

CRABAPPLE

H
E

A
R

T
H

S
I

D
E

LAKE

L
A

K
E

CHARNWOOD

CHARNWOOD

TUTBURY

TEWKSBURY

L
I

M
E

R
I

C
K

J
O

H
N

A
T

H
O

N

MC INTOSH

GRENADIER

PIPPIN

RUSSET

D
U

C
H

E
S

S

PARK VIEW

T
A

N
G

L
E

W
O

O
D

S
H

A
G

B
A

R
K

CHARNWOOD

MALVERN

BRETBY

SQUARE

L
A

K
E

B
E

A
C

H

A
N

S
L

O
W

RAMSBURY

BRETBY

M
A

L
V

E
R

N

DALESFORD

MAPLE

CHARNWOOD

G
L

Y
N

D
E

B
O

U
R

N
E

W
I

N
D

R
U

S
H

RED

ERIN WAY

GALLOWAY BAY

D
U

B
L
I

N
 

F
A
I

R

K
I

L
L

A
R

N
E

Y

M
A

N
C

H
E
S
T
E
R

P
A

R
K

V
I

E
W

R
E

D
 

O
A

K

6

S
U

S
S

E
X

LENOX

DEVONWOOD

S
U

S
S

E
X

A
N

D
O

V
E

R

G
A

T
E

HOUNDS

CHASE

TALL

O
A

K
S

HAVERFORD

CONNOLLY

G
R

E
E

N
H
I

L
L

RIVERVALLEY

HOMEWOOD

S
E

R
E

N
A

B
E

A
C

H

C
R

E
E

K
B

E
N

D

L
O

N
G

V
I
E

W

C
R
E
E

K
B
E

N
D

G
L

E
N

VALLEYVIEW

H
O

M
E

W
O

O
D

RIDGE

COLLINGTON

C
O

L
L
I

N
G

T
O

N

CAMEO

CAMERON

CONNOLLY

C
A

M
E

R
O

N

C
A

R
D
I

N
A

L

C
U
R
R

A
N

CARDINAL

CAPRI

OAK RIDGE

C
R

E
S

T
M

O
N

T

HIDDEN FOREST

7

C
H

A
R

O
K

E
E

CHESAPEAKE

N
E

W
 

K
I

N
G

BREEZE
H
I
L
L

C
A
I

T
L
I

N

WAVERLY

W
H
I
T
F
I
E
L

D

C
H

E
L

T
E

N
H

A
M F

A
W

N

N
O

R
T

H
F
I

E
L

D

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E

8

FLEETWOOD

NORTHFI
ELD

F
R

E
E

M
O

N
T

PARKWAY

F
A
I

R
C

A
S

T
L

E

SQUARE  LAKE

HEATHER
WOOD

W
H
I

T
F
I

E
L

D

F
I

R
W

O
O

D

T
O

W
E
R

McKINLEY

HABRAND

BLANCHE

H
O

U
G

H
T

E
N

W
R
I

G
H

T

FLORENCE

HALDANEN
I

L
E

S

C
A

N
H

A
M

FABIUS

STALWART

D
E
I

N
M

O
R

E

D
A

N
I

E
L

S

W
R
I

G
H

T

V
I

R
G
I

L
I

A

SQUARE LAKE

9

SQUARE LAKE

CUTTING

W
H
I

T
E

H
A

V
E

N

G
L

A
S

G
O

W

TARA

D
O

N
A

L
D

S
O

N

COTSWOLD

F
O

L
K

S
T

O
N

E

M
A

R
T

E
L

L

GLASGOW

SYLVANWOOD

CRESTON

TRINWAY

W
I

N
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

B
E

R
W

Y
C

K

H
A

M
P

S
H
I

R
E

B
E

R
W

Y
C

K

DORSET

HARWICH

WINCHESTER
FALMOUTH

S
H

R
E

W
S

B
U

R
Y

F
A

L
M

O
U

T
H

F
A

L
M

O
U

T
H

F
O

L
K

S
T

O
N

E

FOLKSTONE

S
O

M
E

R
T

O
N

H
E

R
T

F
O

R
D

S
H

A
D

Y
 

C
R

E
E

K

TRILLIUM

10

H
O

L
M

ABBOTSFORD

ASHLEY

MAYBERRY

A
B
I

N
G

T
O

N

SNEAD

PLAYER

TREVINO

B
O

R
O

S

NICKLAUS

W
I

L
L

O
W

G
R

O
V

E

C
A

S
P

E
R

BEATTIE

L
I

T
T

L
E

R
B

A
B

B
I

T

LILA

H
A

L
E

A
L

L
I

S
O

N

P
R

E
N

T
I

S

HOPEDALE

COVE

S
T

O
NEY

W
E

S
T

M
O

R
E

L
A

N
D

G
R

E
E

N
D

A
L

E C
R

E
S

TW
E

S
T

M
O

R
E

L
A

N
D

H
I

L
M

O
R

E PHILATHA

LARAYNE

AUGUSTA

DORAL

11

RUTGERS

E
L

L
I

S

HIGHBURY

JEFFREY

ADRIENNE

MICHELE

M
A

N
D

A
L

E

P
A
T
T
E
R
S

O
N

P
I
L

O
T

C
O
R

A
L

L
I

M
E

S
T

O
N

E

M
A

R
B

L
E

P
E

A
R
L

QUARTZ

R
E

N
S

H
A

W

F
E

D
O

R
A

NILO

P
R
I

N
C

E

I
V

A
N

H
O

E

H
I

G
H
B

U
R

Y

B
I

N
G

H
A

M

L
A
R

K
I

N
S

S
L

A
T

E

TOPAZ

P
A

T
T

E
R

S
O

N

C
L
I
F
F
S
I

D
E

R
O
S
E
B
R

O
O

K

M
I

C
H

E
L

E

TUCKER

SWEET

DUKE

C
R

O
W
F

O
O
T

CLOISTER

C
L

O
I

S
T

E
R

S
A

F
F

R
O

N

SHIRLEY

D
E

N
I

S
E

J
A

D
E

BONITO

S
P

R
I

N
G

M
E

A
D

O
W

S

D
A

Y
T

O
N

B
L

A
I

R

J
U

L
I

A
N

ERICKSON

E
N

G
L
I

S
H

12

LONDON

P
O

S
T

L
O

N
D

O
N

D
E

W
U

L
F

WALTHAM

TEROVA

B
R

A
M

F
O

R
D

S
T

O
D

D
A

R
D

FOXCROFT

TIMMER

AVERY

RENSHAW

VERNIER

D
A

N
B

U
R

Y

B
U

T
L

E
R

WOODINGHAM

FAIRFIELD

A
L
L
E

G
H
E

N
Y

M
A

R
Y

W
O

O
D

C
O

L
O

N
I

A
L

CUMBERLAND

HILLCRESCENT

HILL

C
E

N
T

G
R

E
E

N
S

B
O

R
O

GREENSBORO

NEWBEDFORD

C
I

R
C

L
E

F
O

R
S

Y
T

H

D
E

Q
U
I

N
D

R
E

L
A

N
C

A
S

H
I

R
E

W
I

N
D
S

O
R

A
R

G
Y

L
E

THALES

H
I

L
L

13

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

GLASER

BRADLEY

SHALLOWDALE

H
A

R
O

L
D

SHADOW

D
A

V
I

S

P
I

C
K

F
O

R
D

TYLER

HAMMAN

C
H

A
P
E
L

F
A
I

R
M

O
N

T

WELLING

A
L
T

O
N

H
U

B
B

A
R

D

C
Y

N
T

H
I

A

C
A
L

V
E
R
T

C
A

L
V

E
R

T

A
L
T

O
N

QUEEN

W
H
I

T
E

S
E

L
L

CARR

MERRIWEATHER

BLOOMINGDALE

CHARLEVOIS

ROCKFIELD

LAMB

CLARKE

REILLY

R
E
I

L
L

Y

E
L

E
A

N
O

R

R
E
I
L
L

Y

MAYO

W
I

L
L

O
W

14

LONG LAKE

STREAMVIEW

ECKFORD

GLENSHIRE

WILTON

BELHAVEN

B
E

L
H

A
V

E
N

BELDALE

B
E

L
Z

A
I

R

STREAMVIEW

C
O

L
L
I

N
G

E
C

K
F

O
R

D

ECKFORD

L
I

V
E

R
N

O
I

S

H
A

N
O

V
E

R

RANDALL

EVALINE

LEETONIA

T
A

L
L

M
A

N

B
R
I

S
T

O
L

BRISTOL

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S

C
Y

P
R

E
S

S

BARCLAY

RANDALL

LONGFELLOW

THURBER

Y
A

N
I

C
H

BARCLAY

R
E

N
E

E

P
O

E
R

A
N

D
A
L
L

B
A
R
C
L

A
Y

15

C
R

O
O

K
S

F
I

N
C

H

T
H

R
E

E
O

A
K

S

DUNCAN

B
O

N
N
I

E
B

R
O

O
K

GORDON

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
B

R
O

O
K

BRAEMAR

ABERDEEN

LANGE

CARTER

PARAGON

V
I

R
G
I

L
I

A

HART

WEBB

PLAID

16

TIMBERWYCK

QUAIL RUN

RED FOX

V
A

L
L

E
Y

VISTA

VALLEY

V
I

S
T

A

SHADYWOOD

O
R

C
H

A
R

D

R
I

D
G

E

PINE

B
L

A
C

K

B
I

G

O
A

K

M
O

O
N

G
L

O
W

HIDDEN

DEER P
ATH

OAK RIVER

WHITE

OAKS

W
H
I

T
E

O
A

K
S

E
D

G
E

R
I

V
E

R
S

O
D

E
T

T
E

O
A

K
 
 
 
 

R
I

V
E

R

TRANQUIL

PINE

P
I

E
R

P
I
E
R

RIVERCHASE

KINGSWAY

K
I

N
G

S
W

A
Y

HYLANE

PINE HILL

B
U
T
T
E
R

N
U
T

H
I

L
L

W
A
L

N
U
T

H
I

L
L

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

H
I

L
L

R
O

U
G
E

C
I

R
C

L
E

B
R

O
N

S
O

N

JUNIPER

B
E

A
C

H

KINGSBURY

PRESTWICK PRESTWICK

W
E

N
T

W
O

R
T

H

S
U

G
A

R
G

R
O

V
E

B
R

A
N

D
Y

W
Y

N
E

CHERRYWOOD

SUNDEW

BRI
AR

S
T

O
N

E
H

E
N

G
E

F
R

O
S

T
W

O
O

D

LONG LAKE

A
D

A
M

S

C
H

A
S

E

R
I

V
E

R

18

SPICEWAY

S
E

A
S

O
N

S

R
A

M
B

L
I

N
G

R
A

M
B

L
I

N
G

N
O

R
T

H
F
I

E
L

D
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

T
I

P
T

O
N

W
H
I
S
P
E
R

B
E

N
T
L
E

Y

DURAND

W
A

Y

C
A

H
I
L
L

INVESTMENT

C
O
B
B

HALLMARK

B
I

R
C

H
R

U
N

C
O

F
F

E
Y

CLUB

L
E

D
G

E
S

T
O

N
E

D
R

E
X

E
L

C
O

O
L
I

D
G

E

W
I

N
T

E
R

G
R

E
E

N

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R

D
E

A
C

O
N

D
E

V
O

N
S

H
I

R
E

S
E

Y
M

O
U
RG

R
E
E

N
W
I
C

H

N
O

R
T

H
F
I

E
L

D
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

P
A

R
K

S
T

O
N

E

R
O

L
L

C
R

E
S

T

WHISPER

WAY

BYRON

BRADBURY

P
E

N
R

O
S

E

C
A

R
S

O
N

SUTTON PLACE

WOODS

ROLLING

BLUFF

S
E

A
S

O
N
S

F
L

O
W

E
R
 

H
I

L
L

CREEK

FRENCH

H
I

L
L

PENROSE

B
E

N
D
E
R

FOUNTAIN

G
A

Y
L

O
R

D

L
E

H
I

G
H

GLENCASTLE

G
L

E
N

C
A

S
T

L
E

17

BOLINGBROKE

LANERGAN

U
P
T

O
N

P
A

D
D
I

N
G

T
O

N

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

H
I

L
L

K
E

N
T

LANERGAN

CHESWICK

TOWNHILL

AVONHURST

BI
NBROOKE

OXFORD

S
A

L
E

M

KRISTIN

S
C

O
T

T

K
E

R
R

Y

ESTATES

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

W
O

O
D

M
A

N

E
S

T
A

T
E

S

E
S
T

A
T
E
S

WOODMAN

J
A

C
K

K
E
R
R

Y

B
O

U
L

D
E

R

J
O

A
N

N
EB

O
U
L

D
E
R

L
E

D
G

E

LEDGE

J
I

L
L

O
A

K
H
I

L
L

STONEYRIDGE

U
P

T
O

N

WEMBLY

CHELSEA

C
A

S
W

E
L

L

K
I

N
G

S
L

E
Y

T
O

T
H
I

L
L

M
Y

D
D

L
E

T
O

N

B
E

A
C

H

N
E

W
P

O
R

T

C
U

N
N
I

N
G

H
A

M

LANCER

LANCERBABCOCK

MYDDLETON

ING
T

O

N

PADD

NEWGATE

DOVER
WEN

WARBLER

E
D

G
E

M
O

N
T

KRISTIN B
A

L
F

O
U

R

P
A
R
R

O
T

SPARROW

CANARY

PELICAN

ROSS

CRANBROOK

MARTINIQUE

C
H

A
T

H
A

M

CALIPER

L
A
R

K

MC MANUS

BOULAN

A
L

P
I

N
E

M
C
 

C
L

U
R

E

MUER

BANMOOR

N
O

R
T

H
F
I
E
L

D

HATHAM
C

20

WILSHIRE

F
I

N
C

H

HUNTSFORD

DURHAM

H
U

N
T

S
F

O
R

D

D
E

L
A

W
A

R
E

PORTSMOUTH

O
R
I

O
L

E

MIRACLE

M
I

R
A

C
L

E

R
U

T
H

L
A

N
D

SCOTTSDALE

SCOTTSDALE

KIRK

WENDELTON

E
L
I

Z
A

B
E

T
H

RUTHLAND

M
E

A
D

O
W

B
R

O
O

K

LAWSON L
A

W
S

O
N

D
A

R
L

E
E

N

MUER

M
U

E
R

K
N

O
L

LEMERSON

BANMOOR

E
M

E
R

S
O

N

MUER

21

COLEBROOK

TROMBLEY

J
E

N
N
I

N
G

S

R
O

O
T

B
R
I

S
T

O
L

B
R
I

S
T

O
L

LAPP

TROYWOOD

L
O

U
I

S

T
R

O
Y

F
R

A
N

K
T

O
N

H
E

L
E

N
A

HARTLAND

T
A

L
B

O
T

K
I

L
M

E
R

E
L

L
E

N
B

O
R

O

HARRIS

WATTLES

VANDERPOOL

HARTLAND

22

JUDY

TENNYSON

H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E

BISHOP

STONETREE

S
A

N
D

B
U

R
G

M
I

L
L

A
Y

DICKENS

CHAUCER

A
R

D
M

O
R

E

OGDEN

KIPLING

M
A

R
K

N
A

S
H

GLENWOOD

W
A

K
E

F
I

E
L

D

MADISON

PEACHTREE

K
I

N
G

S
P

O
I

N
T

K
I

N
G

S

POI
NT

TWAIN

O
X

L
E

Y

ABBEY

R
A
I

N
T

R
E

E

H
I

G
H

L
A

N
D

OAKCREST

K
N

O
X

DELOY

S
H

E
R

W
O

O
D NORTHLAKE

URBANCREST

HARTLAND

BOYD

D
A

L
E

Y

TORPEY

CHARRINGTON

WINTHROP

H
A

R
M

O
N

Y

WOODGATE

CRIMSON

CRESTLINE

LAKEWOOD

W
I

N
T

H
R

O
P

23

DEXTER

W
A

Y
F

A
R

E
R

F
A
I

R
F

A
X

GENICK

G
A

T
E

KETTLE

H
O
R
S
E
S

H
O
E

F
O
R

G
E

B
E
L
L

O
W
S

HINGE

H
I

S
T

O
R
I

C

ORPINGTON

C
O

L
W

E
L

L

EAGLE

N
I

A
G

A
R

A

COLUMBIA

ACADEMY

G
R

O
V

E

R
H

O
D

E

I
S

L
A

N
D

R
O

W
L

A
N

D

AVALON

P
A

S
A

D
E

N
A

A
N

V
I

L
C

L
E

V
E

L
A

N
D

A
U

B
U

R
N

CONTINENTAL

H
E

R
I

T
A

G
E

WINTER

MAJESTIC

TRAILWOOD

J
A

S
P

E
R

ARROWHEAD

RAINBOW

O
T

T
E

R

AVALON

24

GARRY

ISABELL R
H

O
D

E

I
S

L
A

N
D GARRY

ISABELL

CAMILLA

PARIS

M
I

L
V

E
R

T
O

N

C
A

M
I

L
L

A

ATHENA

RHODES

EVA

S
P

A
R

T
AMARCUS

BERKSHIRE

SARATOGA

RHODES S
A

M
U

E
L

THAMES

BORDEN

C
L

A
Y

T
O

N

D
O

V
E

R

AFTON

BRINSTON

VERMONT

VIRGINIA

M
I

L
V

E
R

T
O

N

A
L

E
X

A
N

D
E

R

A
T

L
A

S

C
A

S
T

L
E

T
O

NATLAS

NORTHAMPTON

CHESTERFIELD

C
O

V
E

N
T

R
Y

A
D

O
N
I

S S
T

R
A

T
F

O
R

D

TEASDALE

SHERBOURNE

H
E

M
P

S
T

E
A

D

25

M
A

C
O

M
B
 

C
O
.

OLYMPIA

TACOMA

REGENTS

BILTMORE

CLOVERIDGE

FORTHTON

N
O

R
T

H
W

O
O

D

B
A

R
R

E
T

T

H
E
I

D
E

MAPLELAWN

H
E
I

D
E

KIRTS

LOWRY

KIRTS

LINDA

T
H

U
N

D
E

R
B
I

R
D

OLIVER

28

N
O

R
W
I

C
H

 

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

NAMPA

B
R

O
O

K
L

A
W

N

WITHERBEE

ROXBURY

C
E

D
A

R
R
I

D
G

E

OAKLEAF

DOROTHEA

ENGLE

G
R

A
E

F
I

E
L

D

W
A

T
E

R
L

O
O

M
A

Y
F

A
I

R

K
I

N
G

S
T

O
N

M
E

D
F

O
R

D

E
D

E
N

B
O

R
O

U
G

H

E
T

O
N

W
A

R
W
I

C
K

MEDFORD

ESSEX

ROMANY

YORK

DERBY

GOLFVIEW

GLOUCHESTER

W
E

X
F

O
R

D

S
T
.
 

A
N

D
R

E
W

S

30

A
X

T
E

L
L

32

HENRIETTA

OWENDALE

NAUGHTON

D
A

L
E

Y

LINCOLN

B
E

L
L
I

N
G

H
A

M

LARCHWOOD

A
U

S
T
I

N

BRINSTON

WOODSLEE

VERMONT

BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

A
L

G
E

R

26
STARR

HICKORY

CHERRY

K
I

R
K

T
O

N

ALGANSEE

LARCHWOOD

ARTHUR

WOODSLEE

VERMONT

BIRCHWOOD

CHOPIN

M
A

S
T
I

N

H
A

R
T

S
H

O
R

N

K
I

R
K

T
O

N

E
A

S
T

P
O

R
T

C
O

O
K

ROBINWOOD

V
A

N
-

C
O

U
R

T
L

A
N

D

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
I

S
E

W
E

S
T

W
O

O
D

KELLEY

L
Y

D
I

A

CHOPIN

BIRCHWOOD

VERMONT

WOODSLEE

ARTHUR

LARCHWOOD

27

GOLFVIEW

N
O

R
T

H

M
A

X
W

E
L

L

STUTZ

L
A

K
E

V
I

E
W

D
O

R
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

S
O

M
E

R
S

E
T

M
A

P
L

E
L

A
W

N

KIRTS

BUTTERFIELD

T
H

O
R

N
C

R
O
F

T

B
L

A
N
E

Y

PREMIER

TEMPLE CITY

T
O

D
D

S
T

U
T

Z

MAPLE

31 R
E

V
E

R
E L

E
A

F
G

R
E

E
N

RUSHMORE

ZENIA

S
H

A
K

E
R

M
I

L
V

E
R

T
O

N

M
I

L
V

E
R

T
O

N

SILCOT

GULASON

SILCOT

M
I

N
N

E
S

O
T

A

IOWA

WISCONSIN

DASHWOOD
R

O
B

B
I

N
S

R
O

B
B
I

N
S

E
X

E
C

U
T
I

V
E

I
N

D
U

S
C

O

M
I

N
N

E
S

O
T

A

LOVINGTON

D
E

Q
U
I

N
D

R
E

ELLIOTT

36

WHEATON

PIEDMONT

29

ROYALDALE

BRINSTON

PARK

MAPLE

ELMWOOD

L
I

V
E

R
N

O
I

S

BADDER

ELMSFORD

RANKIN

S
O

U
T

E
R

34

A
L

L
E

N

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

H
W

Y
.

S
H

E
F

F
I

E
L

D

K
E

N
Y

O
N

J
A

M
A
I

C
A

K
E

N
Y

O
N

KEY WEST

WACON

B
U

R
T

M
A

N

R
E

D
W

O
O

D

REDWOOD

C
H
I

C
A

G
O

TECHNOLOGY

RING

35

CITY  OF  MADISON   HEIGHTS

CITY  OF  CLAWSON

CITY  OF  ROYAL  OAK

CITY  OF  BIRMINGHAM

B
L

O
O

M
F
I

E
L

D
 
 

T
O

W
N

S
H
I

P

C
I

T
Y
 
 

O
F
 
 

S
T

E
R

L
I

N
G
 
 

H
E
I

G
H

T
S

CITY  OF  ROCHESTER  HILLS

33
S

T
A

N
D
I

S
H

CUSTER

PICADILLY

PICADILLY

LEXINGTON

HAMLET

BALFOUR

S
H

A
K

E
S

P
E

A
R

E

G
R

E
S

H
A

M

PADDOCK

BARNES

F
O

X

SUNBURST

B
R
I

G
G

S

R
R

E
L

S
Q

U
I

B
E

L
L

O
W

S

B
R
I

G
H

T
W

O
O

D

V
A

S
S

A
R

M
O

R
N
I

N
G

D
A

L
E

M
O

R
E

H
E

A
D

BYWATER

W
I

N
D

M
I

L
L

R
E

D
F

O
R

D

C
I

R
C

L
E

W
A

L
D

O

KIMBERLY

ANDREW

WILLIAMS

L
A

N
G

F
O

R
D

H
I

L
L

M
A

N

TAYLOR

HILLMAN

FEDORA

L
I

T
T

L
E
 

C
R

E
E

K

SMALLBROOK

G
R

A
N

G
E

R

POPLAR

B
R
I

D
G

E
 

P
A

R
K

A
P
P

L
E

H
I

L
L
 

T
O

P

F
L
I

N
T

F
O

R
D

H
A

M

W
O

O
D

F
I

E
L

D

SHREWSBURY

D
E

M
A

R
E

T

SHENANDOAH

O
R

C
H

A
R

D

PALMETTO

M
I

L
L
 

P
O

N
D

G
A

T
E

S
F

O
R

D
O

D

D
O

W
N

E
Y

MENT

B
E

E
C

H
 

L
A

N
E

B
E

E
C

H
 

L
A

N
E

P
L

U
M

CENTURY

C
H

A
R

T
E

R

VERMONT

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

MEIJER
INDUSTRIAL  ROW

AIRPORT
TROY OAKLAND

PERRIN CEM.

S
P

E
N

C
E

R

WOODSTON

DORCHESTER

D
O

R
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

N
O

R
T

H

A
X

T
E

L
L

ELEM.
PEMBROKE

D
A

R
T

M
O

O
R

CHELSEA

19

ELEM.
SCHROEDER

PARK
SCHROEDER

BOULAN PARK

CEM.
CROOKS RD.

SCHOOL
MIDDLE
PARK
BOULAN

BEMIS ELEM.

O
L

D
 

C
R

E
E

K

 PARK
PHILIPP J. HUBER

C
I

V
I

C
 

C
E

N
T

E
R

CENTER
COMMUNITY

LIBRARY

 HALL
CITY

POST OFFICE
CITY OF TROY

ELEM.
MORSE

COACHMAN COLONY

B
E

A
C

O
N

L
A

M
P
-

L
I

G
H

T
E

R

COACHMAN

H
I

L
L

GABLE

REDWOOD PARK

AMERICAN

GRAND HAVEN

LOVINGTON

HENDRICKSON

GRANT

JAMAICA

C
O

M
B

E
R

M
E

R
E

M
A

P
L

E
 

W
A

Y

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

C
O

U
R

T

A
C

A
C
I

A

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

K
E

V
I

NRODNEY

ROGER

I
D

A

DORRE

M
A

R
Y

ELAINE

P
A

U
L
I

N
E

M
A

R
L

E
N

E

IRENE

S
H

E
L

L
E

Y

SYLVIA ANN

No. 1
STATION
FIRE

JACKSON

ELDRIDGE

No. 4
STATION
FIRE

PARK

BRINSTON ELEM.
SUSICK

ROUNDTREE

W
O

L
V

E
R
I

N
E

E
U

C
L
I

D

F
O

R
G

E

BARNARD ELEM.

PARK
TRAIL
BEAVER

JASON

P
A

R
K

T
O

N

RAINTREE PARK

WATTLES ELEM.

TOWN CENTER
LEXINGTON

L
A

K
E

V
I

E
W

No. 3
STATION
FIRE

PARK ENTRANCE

OAKHILL

E
A

S
T

B
O

U
R

N
E

PARK
BEACH RD.

P
I

E
R

C
E

WHITE CHAPEL CEMETERY

CRESTFIELD

EVALINE

ELEM.
LEONARD

EDUCATION
BOARD OF

G
A

M
B

E
R

   HIGH
TROY ATHENS

  ELEM.
COSTELLO

WHI
TEHALL

ELEM.
HILL

L
A
T

A

C
O

L
L

E
E

N

H
A

R
B

O
R

ELEM.
WASS

ELEM.
UNION
TROY

FAIRWAYS

No. 2
STATION
FIRE

ELEM.
MARTELL
CHARLES B

GOLF COURSE

MUNICIPAL

SYLVAN GLEN

ELEM.
NILES

W
H
I

T
F
I

E
L

D

A
U
T

U
M

N

ELEM.
HAMILTON

LENOX

No. 6
STATION
FIRE

CEMETERY
BEACH RD.

LIMERICK

R
U

S
S

E
T

FARM

TROY

    PARK
FIREFIGHTERS

M
O

N
T

C
L

A
I

R

  CEM.
CORNERS
 UNION

W
O

O
D

S
I

D
E

WOODSIDE

VILLA PARK

POND RIDGE

DIANE

P
A

R
K
 

E
N

T
R

A
N

C
E

-TROY-
HOSPITAL
BEAUMONT

MUSEUM
TROY

PARK
NORTH GLEN

SCHOOL
MIDDLE
LARSON

0

33001

1600 35001

3000 37001

4000 39001

5000 41001

6000 43001

2
0

0
0

7000 45001

1
0

0
0

0 0

2
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

4
0

0
0

7000

6000

ARLUND WAY

5000

4000

3000

3
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

1
4

0
0

1
0

0
0

0

0

RONALD

ROBART

S
M
I

T
H

F
I

E
L

D

DELTA

LAKE

T
E

L
F

O
R

D

W
H
I

T
I

N
G

S
M
I

T
H

D
E

W
E

Y

DREW

F
U

L
T

O
N

G
R

A
N

G
E

R

H
O

M
E

S
T

E
A

D

A
U

R
O

R
A

ALMOND

C
R

A
B

A
P

P
L

E

T
A

M
A

R
A

C
K

JUSTINE

FOREST PARK

FOREST PARK

DONEGAL

RIDGEDALE

C
A

T
A

L
P

A

CHALGROVE

C
I

D
E

R
 

M
I

L
L

HAVERFORD
HAVERFORD

O
A

K
 
 

R
I

D
G

E

W
I

N
D

Y

R
I

D
G

E

FOX CHASE

CLAYMONT

L
E

E
L

A
N

D

F
A

R
M

B
R

O
O

K

F
L

E
M
I

N
G

T
O

N

FARMBROOK

C
O

R
B
I

N

BUCKINGHAM

W
H
I

T
E

H
A

V
E

N

HIGH
MIDDLE
SMITH

C
H

U
R

C
H
 

H
I

L
L

B
E

V

S
T

O
N

E
Y
 

C
O

V
E

WILMET

E
L

L
E

R
Y

TYLER

T
Y

L
E

R

C
A

R
N

A
B

Y
A

B
I

N
G

T
O

N

MIDVALE

LAUREL

E
N

D
I

C
O

T
T

A
S

T
E

R

TOPAZ

D
I

A
M

O
N

D

MARBLE

OPAL

WILLARD

SAFFRON

KNIGHT

S
H

A
L

E

R
E

N
S

H
A

W

C
A

R
O

L

KENWYCK

WINDSOR

H
Y

D
E
 
 

P
A

R
K

HILL

S
Y

C
A

M
O

R
E

BANKLE

T
I

L
L
I

N
G

FOREST TRAIL

OLD BRIDGE

M
I

D
D

L
E

B
U

R
Y

SENORA

A
N

V
I

L

KEATS

BURNS

S
H

A
D

R
O

C
K

C
L

A
R

K
E

C
R

E
E

K

ROBERTSON

H
O
L
L

Y

D
O

R
S

H
I

R
E

PINEVIEW

LONG LAKE

PARTRIDGE

MARTIN

P
E

R
R
I

N

FENWICKE

P
O

N
D

W
A

Y

D
E

E
P

W
O

O
D

VALLEY VISTA

HAMPTON

H
E

N
H

A
W

K

WATTLES

CUNNI
NGHAM

HIDDEN RIDGE

CASE

BARBARA

SOUTH BLVD.

P
O
I

N
T

N
O

R
T

H
-

SMALL
BROOK

BRIDGE

TOWN

 
B
I
R
C

H

 
W

H
I
T
E

 GATE
 

CLOCK

 HUNT
 

MEATH

SOUTH  BLVD.

FOX

CHASE

CHAMPLAIN

C
L

E
A

R
-

V
I

E
W

 
R
I

D
G

E
D

A
W

N
W

Y
N

N
W

O
O

D

NOTTINGHAM

POOL

LIVER-

C
R
E
E

K

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

GROVE

A
D

A
M

S

   WAY
TARRAGONA

STRAWBER

R
Y

LAKELONG

C
O

O
L
I

D
G

E

CONDOR

B
U

R
K

O
F

F

C
R

O
O

K
S

F
I

N
C

H

ROOT

ROOT

CECIL

PARLIA-

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
O

O
L
I

D
G

E

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

ELLIOTT

FOURTEEN MILE ROAD

D
E

Q
U
I

N
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U
I

N
D

R
E

D
E

Q
U
I

N
D

R
E

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

LONG LAKE

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

SOUTH BLVD.

L
I

V
E

R
N

O
I

S

L
I

V
E

R
N

O
I

S

L
I

V
E

R
N

O
I

S

C
R

O
O

K
S

C
R

O
O

K
S

L
I

V
E

R
N

O
I

S

SQUARE LAKEA
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
L
I

D
G

E

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
L
I

D
G

E

A
D

A
M

S

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

BIG BEAVER

MAPLE

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

WATTLES WATTLES

MAPLEMAPLE

  SCHOOL
BAKER MIDDLE

P
I

N
E

W
A

Y

WILSHIRE

H
U

R
O

N

PORTOBELLO

PARASOL

CHANTERELL

T
R

U
F

F
L

E

MOREL

CRYSTAL

M
I

L
B

U
R

N

C
R

A
B

T
R

E
E

PRESCOTT

NEWBURGH

GABRIEL CAMELOT

P
R

E
S

C
O

T
T

G
A

B
R
I

E
L

MEADOW 

LORNE

66 I
-

7
5
 
(

C
H

R
Y

S
L

E
R
 

F
R

E
E

W
A

Y
)

67

68

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

O
N

69

70

71

72

73

I-75 (CHRYSLER FREEWAY)

X
74

WHITFIELD

R
U

B
Y

DRAKE

SUPERIOR

NEW TROY HIGH

WENDOVER

ORCHARD TRAIL

C
A

R
M

E
L

KNOLL 

 
 
 
 

R
I

D
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

R
Y

V
I

C
T

O
R
I

A

VICTORIA

LATIMER

BAKER

A
L

G
O

N
Q

U
I

N

C
O

N
C

O
R

D

BELMONT

EUCLID

T
A

M
A
R

A
C

K

CRABAPPLE

R
A

C
K

T
A

M

A

1
0

0
0

H
A

R
T

S
H

O
R

N

LAKE

TROY

COVE

CRICKET 

F
I

E
L

D
S

T
O

N
E

NUT HATCH

WHI
TETAI

L

WILDWOOD

J
A

S
M
I

N
E

S
T

O
N

E
H

A
V

E
N

PROVINCIAL

R
O

T

WELL

H

P
A

R

W
A

Y
K

 MOOR

LOCK-

CHIPPEWA

M
O

H
I

C
A

N

S
E

M
I

N
O

L
E

C
H
I

P
P

E
W

A

C
A

M
B

R
I

D
G

E

W
A
S

H
I

N
G

T
O

N

C
R
E

S
C

E
N

T

FALCON

D
E

N
T

O
N

SUNRIDGE

M
U
I

R
F
I

E
L

D

E
D
I

T
H

S
H

O
R

E
L
I

N
E

LAKESIDE

P
O
I

N
T

E

S
O

U
T

H
-

L
A

K
E

W
E

S
T
-

QUINCY

P
O
I

N
T

N
O

R
T

H E
M

E
R

A
L

D

W
E

S
T

P
O
I

N
T

E

F
O

R
D

TEL

F
R

E
D

M
O

O
R

V
E

R
N

M
O

O
R

H
O

U
G

H
T

E
N

G
L

Y
N

D
E

B
O

U

 NE
R

T
E

R
S

H
U

N

 
 
 

N
G

B
R

O
O

K

S
P

R
I

H
A

L
E

BABBIT

S
H
I

R
E

DEVO
N

CRIMSON

COLLINGTON

VALLEYVIEW

H
O

U
N

D
S

C
H

A
S

E

S
O

M
E

R
T

O
N

SARA

NADA

AMBERWOOD

C
I

R
C

L
E

PALMERSTON

  PARK
ROBINWOOD

J
O

H
N
 

R

J
O

H
N
 

R
J

O
H

N
 

R
J

O
H

N
 

R
J

O
H

N
 

R

J
O

H
N
 

R

RENEE

M
I

C
H

A
E

L

MELANIE LANE

K
E

A
T

S

COBBLESTONE

VINEYARDS

V
I

N
E

Y
A

R
D

S

 
M

O
U

N
T

H
I

G
H
-

H
Y
C
L
I
F
F
E

REDDING

E
D

E
N

D
E

R
R

Y

G
A

T
W
I

C
K

ISLAND

ROSEGLEN

VILLAGE

B
R

O
O

K
L

A
W

N

L
A

W
NB

R
O

O
K
-

EQUITY

DINA

ENGLISH

TUCKER

W
O

O
D

A
M

B
E

R
-

M
A

R
I

N
A

SANTIA

S
A

N
T
I

A

WHITNEY

C
I

T
Y
 

O
F
 

B
I

R
M
I

N
G

H
A

M

A
L

B
A

N
Y

ALBANY

BUCKTHORN

A
S

P
E

N
OAKWOOD

T
E

A
K

W
O

O
D

OAKWOOD

  NESS

INVER-

L
O

C
K

S
L

E
Y

LOCKSLEY

CHOICE

MILLSTONE

TIMBERVIEW

TIMBERVIEW

W
I

L
S

H
I

R
E

T
R

O
Y
 

C
E

N
T

E
R

A
M

B
E

R
L

Y
 

EVERGREEN

R
O

S
E

G
L

E
N

MANORWOOD

FALLING BROOK

IVY

THISTLE

H
E

D
G

E
W

O
O

D

J
A

M
E

S
 

P
L

A
C

E

S
T
.
 

P
A

U
L

BELLE MEADE

PINE-

CREEK

P
O
I

N
T

E

A
D

A
M

S

BRIARWOOD

B
R
I

A
R

W
O

O
D

WELLING

W
A
L

D
E

N

BRACKEN

B
R

A
C

K
E

N

D
E

L
P

H
I
 
(

P
V

T
.
)

INGRAM

R
I

C
H

M
O

N
D

D
A

K
O

T
A

ELM CT.

E
L

M
 

P
A

R
K
 

TULIP

WESSELS

H
O

L
L

A
N

D

L
U
I

S
A

 
P

A
R

K

C
A

R
L

S
O

N
 

E
L

G
I

N

CANDACE

L

W
A

G
O

N

WH
EE

C
A

C
T

U
S

W
O

R
T

H
I

N
G

T
O

N

GARWOOD

HARVEST

E
U

C
L
I

D

SPRINGTIME

C
E

D
A

R
 

C
R

E
S

T

S
H

E
P

H
E

R
D

S

ACORN

A
C

O
R

N

TUMBLEWEED

 
 
 

L
A

N
E

 A
N

N
A

B
E

L

R
A

M
B

L
E

W
O

RADCLIFFE

ELEM.
WOODLAND

PRAIRIE

DEERFI
ELD

L
A

K
E

S
A

N
D

S
H

O
R

E
S

lake

pvt.

 CHARNWOOD 

    
LAKE

B
R

U
N

S
W
I

C
K

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
I

S
E

ACORN

B
E

L
L
I

N
G

H
A

M

C
H

R
I

S
T

Y

CR

E
S

BUILDING
COURT

D
O

U
G

L
A

S
 

F
I

R

BLUE SPRUCE

ASHBURY

MICHAEL

L
A

N
E

C
H

A
T

F
I

E
L

D
 

C
I

R
C

L
E

M
E

L
C

O
M

B
E

P
L

A
C

E

A
L
I

S
O

P P
L

A
C
E

A
L
I
S

O
P

C
I
R
C
L
E

M
E
L
C

O
M
B
E

O
M

A
R

S
U

M
M

E
R

F
I

E
L

D

APPLEWOOD

F
A

D
I

SALMA

S
U

N
S
E
T W

A
R

D
L

O
W

SUSSEX

No. 5
STATION

FIRE 

S
I

D
E

10

11

12 13

14

15

16

17

18

1

2

3

4 5 6

7

8

9

MAYA

BARILAINE

V
I

K
I

N
G

E
D

G
E

W
A

T
E

R

SANDALWOOD

HARRINGTON 

M
E

A
D

O
W

L
A

R
K

SONGBIRD

CHARLESTON

CENTER
TRAINING
POLICE/FIRE

 
P
I

N
E

 S
C

O
T

C
H

CEDAR KNOLL

crossing

emergency vehicle

RABBEN

D
E

V
O

N
 

L
A

N
ECAMDEN

A
S

H
F

O
R

D

R
A

L
I

E
G

H
 

P
L

A
C

E

PLACE

NEWBURY

 
F

A
L

L

W
A

T
E

R
-
 
 

 
 
-

V
A

N
E

W
E

A
T

H
E

R
 

BIG BEAVER

 DALE

 B
ROOK-

PUBLIC WORKS YARD

DEPARTMENT OF

J
O

H
N
 

R

MT. VERNON

DENISE

M
A

P
L

E
 

L
A

N
E

BIRCHDALE

LORENZO

D
O

Y
L

E

SEQUOIA

R
A

V
E

N
W

O
O

D

HARTLAND

BOYD

L
Y

O
N

S

 PARK
JAYCEE

    PARK 

SYLVAN GLEN

CENTER

NATURE

STAGE

 PARK
 AQUATIC

TROY FAMILY

R
U

T
H

L
A

N
D

C
H

E
R
I

S
H

E
D
 

V
I

E
W

A
L

A
M
E

D
A

HOLLINS HALL

W
A

B
A

S
H
 

L
A

N
E

ALAMEDA

POLICE

RED RUN

R
E

D
 

R
U

N

CREEK

PAINT

AMHERST

PARK 
FLYNN
DONALD J. 

  GOLF COURSE
 
SANCTUARY LAKE 

P
E

A
C

O
C

K

R
I

V
E

R
 

B
A

N
K

WYANDOTTE

D
O

M
I

N
I

Q
U

E

 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

E
D

 
M

A
P

L
E

 
R

E
D

N

1

2

3

4

TANNER

S
C

H
O

O
L

H
O

U
S

E

4.  BEAVER RUN

3.  FAULKNER

2.  FOXBORO

1.  SPRUCEDALE

A
L

G
E

R

D
O

O

N
W

O

D
E

V

SQUIRE

NEW KING

C
O

U
R

T

N
E

W
 

K
I

N
G

SEABISCUIT

A
P

P
A

L
O

O
S

A

W
Y

N
G

A
T

E

FIRESIDE

NEW CASTLE

WYNGATE

 TRAIL

CARRIAGE F
I

R
E

S
I

D
E

BENJAMIN

QUILL CREEK

M
A

P
L

E
L

A
W

N

EQUITY

C
O

U
R

T

T
R

O
Y

V
I

R
G
I

L
I

A

MacLYNN

N
O

R
W

A
Y

C
O

O
L
I

D
G

E

B
R
E

N
T

W
O

O
DB

A
Y

S
I

D
E

BRAHMS

ASHLAWN

GUNSTON

M
E

S
A

M
I

R
A

G
E

JEFFERSON

SQUARE LAKE

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

T
I

M
B

E
R

C
R

E
S

T

M
A

Y
A

P
P

L
E

D
E

Q
U
I

N
D

R
E

ATHENA

A
T

L
A

S

LANGSTON
V

E
N

U
S

N
A

V
I

N
 

F
I

E
L

D

 
 

C
I

R
C

L
E

B
E

N
N

E
T

T
 

P
A

R
K
 

E
L

A
R

Z

S
O

L
O

M
O

N

B
R

O
O

K

S
A

D
D

L
E
 

F
E

R
N

L
E
I

G
H

COTTONWOOD

TIMBERCREST

E
.
L

O
V
E
L
L

TRAVERSE

F
L

O
Y

D

OF TROY
GIRLS CLUB
BOYS & 

CITY  OF  TROY
OAKLAND COUNTY MICHIGAN

DESCRIPTION

PLANS PREPARED BY

SHEET NO.CONTRACT NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

CHECKED BYR
E

V
I

S
I

O
N

S

DATE REMARKS

500 W. BIG BEAVER
TROY,  MICHIGAN  48084

DESIGN ENGINEER

SHEET NO.CONTRACT NO.

DRAWN BY

DATE

CHECKED BYR
E

V
I

S
I

O
N

S

DATE REMARKS

DESIGN ENGINEER

TROY ENGINEEERING DEPARTMENT 

MICHIGANOAKLAND COUNTY

W.J.H.

PROJECT SITE

PROJECT SITE

EVERGREEN TROY-GWK

CONTRACT  No. 13-06

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T
 

N
o
.
 
 
1
3
-
0
6

13-06

OCTOBER 2013

No.

SHEET 

PROJECT SITE

REPLACEMENTS
2014 WATER MAIN 

PROJECT No. 13.502.5, 13.504.5 & 13.505.5

2014 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENTS

CITY OF TROY

SUSSEX,  WATTLES & WESTWOOD
HUNTERS GATE,  FOX CHASE,  LENOX,

ANDOVER CT.,  DEVONWOOD,  HAVERFORD,

1

A.A.C.G.S.F./

ST
ATE
 OF MICHIGAN

L
ICE

NSED  
PROFESSIONA

L
 EN

G
IN

E
E
R

FINLAY
G. SCOTT

NO. 

ENGINEER

39637

DESIGN ENGINEERDESIGN ENGINEER

ST
ATE
 OF MICHIGAN

L
ICE

NSED  
PROFESSIONA

L
 EN

G
IN

E
E
R

NO. 

ENGINEER

CICCHETTI
ANTONIO A.

48045

B

A

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

STANDARD WATER MAIN DETAILS

STANDARD SOIL EROSION & GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

ADA SIDEWALK RAMPS

WESTWOOD PROFILES

WESTWOOD 21+60 - 36+00

WESTWOOD 17+00 - 21+60

WESTWOOD 10+00 - 17+00

WATTLES    17+00 - 11+00

WATTLES    23+00 - 17+00 

LENOX - STA 40+00 TO STA 44+28

SUSSEX - STA 10+00 TO STA 15+00 AND

SUSSEX - STA 15+00 TO 19+00

LENOX - ADAMS TO STA 35+28 AND

HUNTERS GATE CUL-DE-SAC

DEVONWOOD & FOX CHASE CUL-DE-SACS

FOX CHASE - GLEN TO WEST END

HUNTERS GATE - STA 10+00 TO STA 16+00

HAVORFORD - STA 36+00 TO HUNTERS GATE

HAVORFORD - ANDOVER TO STA 36+00

ANDOVER COURT

GENERAL NOTES

COVER

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Text Box

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text
Wattles

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text
Square Lake Rd

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text
Maple

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Typewritten Text

parsonsjm
Stamp



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date:  February 4, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
 Thomas Gordon, Lieutenant 
 MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
   
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Tactical Vests 
 
 
History 
The Police Department provides specialized ballistic vests to officers assigned to the Special Investigations Unit and 
Tactical Support Team.  These vests provide enhanced protection to the officers during high risk investigations and 
response to critical incidents.  The current ballistic vests are no longer under the manufacturer’s warranty, and are at the 
end of their life cycle; necessitating the replacement of vests currently being used by the Police Department. 
 
Purchasing 
On January 30, 2014, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code to purchase up to nineteen (19) 
Tactical Vests for the Police Department.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) 
website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Two (2) bid responses were 
received.  The award is recommended low bid as specified.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 93 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 1 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 1 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  28 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

 After reviewing the bid proposal, On Duty Gear, LLC of Port Huron, MI was the lowest bidder meeting specifications to 
provide one (1) year requirements of NEW Tactical Vests and is being recommended for the purchase of fifteen (15) 
Tactical Vests in the current 2013-2014 fiscal year and four (4) Tactical Vests in the 2014-2015 fiscal year.   
 
Financial 
The funds for these purchases are available in the Police Department in the fiscal years as detailed below.   
 

Fiscal Year 
Vest 
Qty. Unit Cost Total Cost 

2013-2014 15 $2,885.00 $43,275.00 
2014-2015 4 $2,885.00 $11,540.00 

      $54,815.00 
 
Also note these vests are reimbursable under the Department of Justice Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant.  This grant 
will reimburse the City 50% of the purchase price. 
 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to purchase Tactical Vests for the Police Department to the lowest 
bidder meeting specifications, On Duty Gear, LLC of Port Huron, MI for an estimated total cost of $54,815.00 as detailed 
above, all at prices contained in the bid tabulation dated January 30, 2013.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 Tactical Vests ITB-COT 14-01.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 14-01
Opening Date -- 1/30/2014 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Reviewed -- 2/4/2014 TACTICAL VESTS

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL:  To Furnish ONE (1) Year Requirements of NEW TACTICAL VESTS for the City of Troy Police Department;

              in accordance with all bid specifications.

Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost
COST FOR NINETEEN (19) TACTICAL VESTS

Armor Express Model LightHawk XT  2,885.00$        54,815.00$              2,998.00$  56,962.00$            

SIZE AVAILABILITY:

WARRANTY:

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Y/N

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE ENCLOSED: Y/N

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Operation
24 Hr. Phone #
Contact Name

REFERENCES: Y/N

PAYMENT TERMS

DELIVERY

EXCEPTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed Y/N

Forms (5) Y/N

Bold Type Indicates Low Bidder meeting Specification.

ATTEST:
Enna Bachelor

__________________________
MaryBeth Murz, 
Purchasing Manager

G:ITB-COT 14-01 Tactical Vests

On Duty Gear, LLC CMP Distributors, Inc.
Port Huron, MI Lansing, MI

Sml-4XL, Reg & LongCustom Sized

810-650-5004 517-974-4276
9:00am-5:00pm M-F 8:30am-5:00pm

Manufacter-5yrs. On ballistics, Manufacturer

Catherine Parks

90 ARO 30-40 days ARO

Yes Yes

Yes No

Yes Yes

Net 30 Net 30

Blank

Yes Yes

Yes No 2 of 5

Steve Zagacki
K. M. Ball

18 mo. On carrier

George Zielinksi

None

Paul Riddell



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 5, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 

MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Sandra Kasperek, City Treasurer 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tax Bill Printing 

Services 
 
 
History 
On March 5, 2012, Troy City Council approved a two-year contract to provide Laser printing and the 
Distribution of the City of Troy Summer and Winter Tax Bills, with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to the low bidder, Peregrine Services Inc. of Monroe, LA, with an option to renew for 
one additional (1) year (tax period).  {Resolution #2012-03-060-J4c}. 
 

• Vendor is required to provide laser printed tax bills inserted in envelopes, presorted and 
delivered to the post office by a specified date. 

• Peregrine Services Inc. has proven to be reliable in meeting all printing specifications and 
required deadlines. 

• Peregrine Services Inc. of Monroe, LA, agreed to renew the current contract under the same 
prices, terms and conditions for one (1) additional year.   

 
Purchasing 
The Purchasing Department performed a market survey and based on the results and the successful 
performance of Peregrine Services has concluded that it is in the City’s best interest to exercise the 
renewal option. 
 
Financial 
Funds for these services are available in the printing and postage accounts in the operating budget of 
the Treasurer’s Office. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the one (1) year option to renew Laser printing and the 
Distribution of the City of Troy Summer and Winter Tax Bills with Peregrine Services Inc. of Monroe, 
LA, under the same prices, terms and conditions. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Documents 13-14 Resolution3_TaxBillPrintingSvcs.doc 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04d



stewartc
Text Box
J-04e





























 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 6, 2014 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
  Andrew Opalewski, Marketing Coordinator 
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award - Wayfinding Consultant Services for the 

Troy Public Library 
 
 
History 
In 2012, the Troy Public Library conducted a study that led to the development of the Library’s 2013-2015 
Strategic Plan.  A priority action item of the Library’s Strategic Plan is to “make it easier for users to navigate 
the Library – finding materials and finding places (computer area, youth area, restrooms, etc.) – through 
effective signage, low-cost reorganization and increased staff interaction” (Objective 2.1).  In turn, Library 
administration finds it necessary to seek an experienced Wayfinding Consultant to develop a comprehensive 
signage system that specifically facilitates Wayfinding throughout the Library and the Library parking lot so as 
to enhance patrons’ sense of direction and evoking imagery to strengthen the identity and image of the Library 
and its services. 
 
The Wayfinding Consultant Service utilizing Wayfinding Design Principles will: 

• Address the needs of visitors and residents as stated in the Library’s Strategic Plan  
• Create intuitive, legible signage that is direct, welcoming, accessible and focused on safety. 
• The system will be adaptable to future Library needs.  
• The analysis will include a variety of signage and reorganizational needs including, but not limited to: 

• Kiosks/Information Centers 
• Room Identification Signage 
• Directional and Identification Signage for Library Materials 
• Materials Return and Drop-off Signage 
• Minor or non-costly materials or room reorganization 
• Public Parking Signage 
• Vehicular Directional Signage 

 
The project is limited to the City of Troy Library building (55,000 sq ft., 45,000 of which is public and staff 
space), the Library grounds, the Library’s vehicular entrance and parking lot.  Phase 2 Wayfinding Signage 
would include the City Hall Complex in the future. 
 
Purchasing 
On December 19, 2013, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for Wayfinding 
Consultant Services for the City of Troy Public Library.  The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental 
Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info and the bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  
Four (4) bid proposal responses were received.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors: 
 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04f



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Purchasing (continued) 
 

Companies notified via MITN 596 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 20 
Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 20 
Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  65 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 2 

 Proposals were evaluated as per the Request for Proposal; Section 3: Criteria for Selection.  The Wayfinding 
Consultant Services Evaluation Committee members were as follows: 
 

Cathy Russ, Library Director 
Justin Beyer, Assistant to the Library Director 
Andrew Opalewski, Marketing Coordinator 
Steve Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
Enna Bachelor, Buyer 

 
The evaluation committee reviewed proposals to determine the most qualified firm based upon a combination of 
factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the company 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Firms were then evaluated and scored based on: 
 
 40% Proposal Score 
 20% Interview Score  
 40% Price Score 
 100% 
 
Based on the evaluation process and the final scoring KMA Design was ranked the highest of the four (4) 
proposals received.  KMA Design provided the most complete detailed proposal which included a detailed 
project timeline.  KMA Design as evaluated was also the most creative in terms of signage application 
and specifically has experience with Libraries. 

KMA’s design approach includes for (4) phases as listed below.  For detailed description of each 
Phase see Attachment A. 
Phase 1  Analysis 
Phase 2  System Design Development 
Phase 3  Pre-Production 
Phase 4  Implementation 

 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Financial 
In order to accomplish this objective, $20,000 in the 2013-14 Budget was allocated towards hiring a Wayfinding 
Consultant.  Funds are available in the Library’s operating budget, 271.790.7816.010 Consultant Services. 
 
Recommendation 
City management and the Wayfinding Consultant Services Committee recommend awarding the contract to 
furnish Wayfinding Consultant Services for the City of Troy Public Library to the best value proposer; KMA 
Design of Carnegie, PA for an estimated total cost of $18,105.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened December 19, 2013.  The project shall be completed as detailed by the timeline which was also 
included in the proposal and is included with this recommendation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 Wayfinding Consultant Services RFP-COT 13-36.doc 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 13-36
Opening Date -- 12/19/2013 BID TABULATION Page1 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 1/6/2014 Professional Wayfinding Analysis and Consultant Services

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL:  To Furnish Professional Wayfinding Analysis and Consultant Services for the City of Troy Public Library; in accordance with Request 

 for Proposal specifications and scope of work.

Staff
Approx. 

Hrs. $ Cost/Hr. Total Cost
Approx. 

Hrs. $ Cost/Hr. Total Cost

Phase 1:  Analysis

Library Building Senior Designer 40 120.00$ 4,800.00$   Research/Learning 12 100.00$ 1,200.00$   
Project Manager 44 105.00$ 4,620.00$   Analysis/Planning 48 100.00$ 4,800.00$   
Reimbursable 1,185.00$   Deliverables/Preso. 12 100.00$ 1,200.00$   

Library Building Total 10,605.00$ 7,200.00$   

Library Grounds, Parking Lot, Vehicular Entrance Senior Designer 14 120.00$ 1,680.00$   Analysis/Planning 32 100.00$ 3,200.00$   
Project Manager 14 105.00$ 1,470.00$   

Library Grounds, Parking Lot, Vehicular Entrance Total 3,150.00$   3,200.00$   

Total Phase 1:  Analysis 13,755.00$ 10,400.00$ 

Phase 2: System Design Development Senior Designer 108 120.00$ 12,960.00$ Conceptual Design 32 100.00$ 3,200.00$   
Project Manager 34 105.00$ 3,570.00$   Design Development 24 100.00$ 2,400.00$   
Reimbursables 1,300.00$   

Total Phase 2:  System Design Development 17,830.00$ 5,600.00$   

Phase 3:  Pre-Production Senior Designer 68 120.00$ 8,160.00$   Pre-Production 16 100.00$ 1,600.00$   
Project Manager 52 105.00$ 5,460.00$   
Reimbursables 1,225.00$   

Total Phase 3:  Pre-Production 14,845.00$ 1,600.00$   

Phase 4:  Implementation Professional Fees 15,120.00$ Fabrication Admin. 12 100.00$ 1,200.00$   
Reimbursables 1,280.00$   Reference Manual 16 80.00$    1,280.00$   

Total Phase 4:  Implementation 16,400.00$ 2,480.00$   
Preso. Materials 1 600.00$      

Grand Total: 374 62,830.00$ 205 20,680.00$ 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Yes/No

Yes/No

Yes/No

Yes/No

Yes/No

ATTEST:
Enna Bachelor
Cathy Russ Bold Type Indicates: 

Justin Beyer

__________________________
MaryBeth Murz,
Purchasing Manager

G:\Bid Tabs 13-14RFP-COT 13-36 Wayfinding

Nicolson & Associates

Bloomfield Hills, MI

Yes

None

Yes

Corbin Design

Traverse City, MI

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Richard Nicholson

248 207 3921

30 Days

Yes

None

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Shelley Steele

231 947 1236

30 Days

REFERENCES:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed

Forms (5)

DESCRIPTION:

INSURANCE:

INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS:

CONTACT INFORMATION: 

PAYMENT TERMS:



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 13-36
Opening Date -- 12/19/2013 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
Date Reviewed -- 1/6/2014 Professional Wayfinding Analysis and Consultant Services

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL:  To Furnish Professional Wayfinding Analysis and Consultant Services for the City of Troy Public Library; in accordance with Request 

 for Proposal specifications and scope of work.

Approx. 
Hrs. $ Cost/Hr. Total Cost Staff

Approx. 
Hrs. $ Cost/Hr. Total Cost

Phase 1:  Analysis

Library Building Tasks as detailed 24.5 85.61$    2,097.50$   Assessment 2,500.00$   
Total Expenses 1,425.00$   Travel/expenses 750.00$      

Library Building Total 3,250.00$   

Library Grounds, Parking Lot, Vehicular Entrance Assessment 1,000.00$   
Travel/expenses 750.00$      

Library Grounds, Parking Lot, Vehicular Entrance Total 1,750.00$   

Total Phase 1:  Analysis 3,522.50$   5,000.00$   

Phase 2: System Design Development Tasks as detailed 49.25 79.47$    3,913.75$   Develop design concepts 5,700.00$   
Total Expenses 1,519.50$   Design revisions (up to 5)

Total Phase 2:  System Design Development 5,433.25$   5,700.00$   

Phase 3:  Pre-Production Tasks as detailed 41 77.44$    3,175.00$   Const. drawings, spec bid pkge. 1,875.00$   

Total Expenses 1,429.75$   Travel expense, bid eval/ 1,500.00$   

Total Phase 3:  Pre-Production 4,604.75$   3,375.00$   

Phase 4:  Implementation Tasks as detailed 39 85.26$    3,282.50$   Attend install, develop punch list 1,500.00$   

Total Expenses 1,262.00$   

Total Phase 4:  Implementation 4,544.50$   1,500.00$   

Grand Total: 153 18,105.00$ 15,575.00$ 

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Yes/No

Yes/No

Yes/No

Yes/No

Yes/No

ATTEST:
Enna Bachelor
Cathy Russ Bold Type Indicates: 

Justin Beyer

__________________________
MaryBeth Murz,
Purchasing Manager

G:\Bid Tabs 13-14RFP-COT 13-36 Wayfinding

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed Yes Yes

Forms (5) Yes Yes

REFERENCES: Yes Yes

EXCEPTIONS: Yes None

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30

Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Yes Yes

INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION: Barbara J. Martin Bill Hungerford
412 429 4071 585 318 1017

KMA Design TakeForm

Carnegie, PA Medina, NY

DESCRIPTION:











 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:        February 5, 2014                       
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
Subject: 4th Annual Regional Arts & Culture Awards 
 
 
Background 
 
Planning is underway for Paint Creek Center for the Arts’ (PCCA) 4th annual Regional Arts & Culture 
Awards. The event will be held once again at the Royal Park Hotel in early June. The Regional Arts & 
Culture Awards encompass eight municipal awards honoring those who are fostering arts & culture in 
their local communities and one distinguished Regional Arts Award by PCCA to an individual or 
organization fostering arts & culture in the greater southeast Michigan area.  The City of Troy 
nominated the Belian Art Center and Gallery Director Zabel Belian for this award last year. 
 
PCCA will work once again with the original eight municipalities in its service region including 
Rochester, Rochester Hills, Oakland Twp., OrionTwp., Auburn Hills, Troy, Shelby Twp. and 
Washington Twp., to coordinate the selection of an award recipient representing each of these 
communities. The awards are intended to recognize those who are fostering arts & culture in 
meaningful and impactful ways. Award recipients could include: an individual who has committed their 
time, resources, leadership and expertise to advance an arts related mission; an individual, family or 
business who has made a significant financial contribution to the arts; an arts educator; an individual 
who has demonstrated leadership in founding, reenergizing or sustaining an arts organization; a 
group, individual or organization creating awareness or support for the arts or an artist or arts 
organization serving the community in broad and impactful ways. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is our recommendation that the City nominate the Ridgedale Players to represent Troy.  During the 
Great Depression on October 31, teacher Minna Miller Smith of Lincoln High School formed a group 
of 27 aspiring thespians using funds provided by the Federal Emergency Relief Administration. The 
group gave people something to do during a time of widespread unemployment and low morale. 
 
Ridgedale Players, as it was named for the combination of its original Pleasant Ridge and Ferndale 
location, has now been performing plays for 81 years. Their first production was The House with the 
Twisty Windows, a one-act presented at Lincoln High School for tickets of 35 cents. In January 1935, 
its newsletter, Backstage, went to print and for its rate of success, Ridgedale Players deemed it time  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-05



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
to construct their own playhouse. Harry Henry was placed in charge of the project and the job was 
completed January 12, 1949 at 205 W. Long Lake Road in Troy. 
 
Ridgedale Players welcomed child actors for their first play in 1950 and season tickets were 
introduced in 1957. Bells are Ringing was performed as the company’s first musical for the 1966-67 
season, much to the delight of its audiences. 
 
Ridgedale Players serves as a valuable asset to both the community and interested thespians by 
helping people to enjoy theater through meaningful, memorable, and creative productions.  They also 
hold fundraisers for our local nonprofit organizations during a number of their productions.  The 
Ridgedale Players most definitely foster arts & culture in the City of Troy as well as the greater 
southeast Michigan area.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: February 7, 2014 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
 Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets & Drains 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PURE TROY – Mowing Maintenance 
 
 
On July 22, 2013 City Council requested a study session to discuss right of way maintenance 
including mowing and snow removal from public sidewalks.  Council held the study session on 
September 9, 2013.  Both mowing and snow removal were studied.   
 
Council concerns regarding mowing were forwarded to City Management.  After carefully 
considering these concerns, City Management will recommend City Council amend City Code 
Chapter 82 Property Maintenance.  Specifically, the recommendation will be to reduce the maximum 
allowed turf grass/weed height from the current 10 inches to 8 inches.  The 8 inch requirement is 
consistent with other communities in Southeast Michigan.  The reduction in height will improve 
aesthetics and protect property values in residential neighborhoods, particularly in those 
neighborhoods with foreclosed homes.  This is the only recommendation being proposed to Chapter 
82. 
 
This item will be presented to City Council at the Regular meeting on March 3, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Chapter 82\CC Memo_ Chapter 82 2014 02 10.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
K-02a



stewartc
Text Box
O-02a





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 4, 2014 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Loraine Campbell, Exec. Director, Troy Historic Village 
  Judy Iceman, President Troy Historical Society 
    
 
Subject: Troy Historical Society Annual Report FYE June 30, 2013 
 
 
History 
 
The Troy Historical Society is pleased to provide Troy City Council and City Management their Annual 
Report for FYE 2013. During the period ending June 30, 2013, the THS Board of Trustees recognized 
that they had successfully transitioned from a volunteer organization that supported the Troy Historic 
Village to a nonprofit business that manages the Village. However, through a comprehensive 
strategic planning process, they also realized that sustainability in the 21st century will require an even 
greater transformation in both the organization and the Village. They have embraced that challenge 
as individuals and as a group.  
 
The Board of Trustees and Executive Director committed to provide $19,000 in cash contributions in 
FYE 2014 and developed a three year rolling budget. The leadership organized standing committees 
that are actively working to address critical issues outlined in the strategic plan and in this annual 
report. The Board also allocated funds to hire a part time marketing coordinator to increase 
community awareness of the Village, and a part time fund development director to build relationships 
that will increase long-term financial support.  During the first half of FY 2013-14, the Troy Historical 
Society hired those staff members, met its financial obligations, and is working earnestly to meet or 
exceed FYE 2014 budgeted revenues. 
 
Finally, the Board is grateful for the City’s continued support and investment to protect and enhance 
our shared cultural resources, which bring history and heritage to life for residents and visitors from 
across the region.          
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
LC, Preparer and File Location, for example:  BK/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\01.14.13 – Memo Name 

stewartc
Text Box
O-02b



1

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013





3

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

On behalf of the Board of Trustees of the Troy Historical Society and the staff of the Troy 
Historic Village, I am pleased to present the Annual Report for the Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013.

We have accomplished a great deal during the past year. New volunteers, board 
members and staff contributed important skills to improve operational efficiencies in 
the Troy Historic Village, expand programs, and usher the Board of Trustees through 
a comprehensive strategic planning process. We embraced our mission to stimulate 
discovery and cultivate life-long appreciation of history through meaningful experiences 
that engage the public. We also reaffirmed our vision to be an indispensable economic 
and community development resource in Troy.

Winston Churchill once said, “The farther backward you can look, the farther forward 
you are likely to see.” During 2012-13 we set goals for 2020. We envisioned a 21st 
century cultural institution that is known and valued throughout southeast Michigan. 
However, this pathway remains guided by the sustained vision and hard work of Society 
members who worked together for over forty years to establish the Troy Historic Village. 
We look forward to sharing our continued progress with you each year.

Sincerely,

Loraine Campbell
Executive Director





5

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

I. Introduction
Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) June 30, 2013 was significant for the Troy Historical Society 
(THS) and the Troy Historic Village (THV).  It was the second full year that the Society 
operated the Village after the City of Troy transferred governance and management 
responsibilities to THS in FYE 2012, and the Society initiated a comprehensive strategic 
planning process that began in January 2013.  

This Annual Report for FYE 2013 shares how THS and THV have continued to 
evolve and grow, supporting our mission to stimulate discovery and cultivate a life-
long appreciation of history.  We reaffirmed our commitment to preserve and expand 
Troy’s historical resources and educate our visitors.  We also embraced a vision where 
the Troy Historic Village actively contributes to Troy’s economic development, and the 
Village is recognized as an indispensable cultural resource for the City of Troy and 
Southeast Michigan.

The Troy Historical Society is becoming a strategically focused, operationally efficient, 
financially prudent, and effective organization that governs, strengthens, and guides 
the Troy Historic Village.  The initiation of a strategic planning process for THS enabled  
us to:

• Refocus and re-energize by better understanding our mission, vision, and values 
• Analyze and assess our external and internal environments to identify the most 

critical issues facing our organization
• Formulate specific goals and strategies to address these critical issues 
• Develop action steps and financial projections to establish a clear and practical 

direction for our future

The critical issues and goals identified in the 2013 strategic plan for THS serve as 
the outline for this Annual Report.  The activities and accomplishments achieved by 
THS/THV board members, volunteers, and staff during FYE 2013 are described in the 
following sections:

•	 Financial Viability

•	 Experience

•	 Awareness

•	 Adequate Resources

•	 Organizational Culture 



6

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

II. Financial Viability
Strategic Goal:  Serve as responsible financial stewards and achieve an appropriate 
level of philanthropic contributions, revenue growth, grant funding, and visitor/customer 
volumes to sustain and grow the Village operations on a long-term basis.

The FYE 2013 audited financial statements (included in the Supporting Documents) 
show that the Troy Historical Society was able to successfully manage operations and 
generate a modest net income of $19,626 for the year, which represents an operating 
margin of 6.5%.  

Total revenues for FYE 2013 totaled $302,819.  Operations generated revenues of 
$131,676 (43% of total revenues) from the following areas:

School programs:      $85,207 (28% of total revenues)
Public programs:     $18,499 (6%)
Other (Admissions, Rentals, Store):   $27,970 (9%)

Fund development efforts generated $96,142 (32% of total revenues) from the  
following sources:

Donations:      $42,160 (14%)
Grants (Foundations):    $25,692 (8%)
Sponsorships:     $20,400 (7%)
Other (Memberships, Events):   $  7,890 (3%)   

A significant donation was received from Janet and Joel Garrett who generously gave 
$10,000 to support renovations to the Niles Barnard House.  Over 30 volunteers offered 
their time, energy, and “sweat equity” to make various improvements to the Niles 
Barnard House.

THS received $20,000 in a grant from the Kresge Foundation and other grant funding 
totaled just under $6,000.

In addition to the support provided by the City of Troy to maintain the facilities and 
grounds of the Troy Historic Village, the City also provided $75,000 (25% of total 
revenues) to support the operational costs of the Village.  This amount is considerably 
less than the costs to support operations when the Village was operated by the City, but 
is critically important to maintain financial viability.

Total expenses for FYE 2013 totaled $283,193.  Salaries / wages and payroll taxes for 
Troy Historic Village staff represented the largest expense from operations, totaling 
$176,672 or 62% of total expenses.  



7

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Other major expenses included the following:

Equipment rentals:    $16,819  (6%)
Professional fees:    $14,007  (5%)
Program supplies:    $12,745  (4.5%)
Repairs and maintenance:   $10,518  (4%)
Improvements to Niles-Barnard House: $  7,827  (3%)

Total assets (current assets and property & equipment) for THS totaled $146,823 in 
FYE 2013, an increase of $34,867 from FYE 2012.

The Troy Traffic Jam Classic Car Show is a major fundraising event for the Troy Historic 
Village and is held in August.  Major sponsors for the event include Kelly Services, 
Kirco/Columbia Center, and the Suburban Collection.  The event raised $14,016 for the 
Village in FYE 2013. 

There were 31 facility rentals in FYE 2013 which generated $11,763 in revenue.

 A list of Financial Sponsors is included in Supporting Documents.



8

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

III. Visitor Experience
Strategic Goal:  Establish the Troy Historic Village as a unique cultural destination 
that is convenient, accessible, meaningful, relevant, affordable, and dynamic.  
The Village is a popular gathering and happening place for residents in Troy and 
Southeast Michigan.

An integral part of the mission of the Troy Historic Village is not only the preservation 
of unique and historically valuable resources, but also the education of our visitors 
and guests.  Numerous educational programs were offered by Troy Historic Village 
staff during FYE 2013.  These diverse programs, which appealed to youngsters and 
adults, including the following:

•	 School Field Trips – Consistently attracts the largest number of visitors to the Village 
and contributes the largest source of revenues.  Elementary school children from 
various schools in Troy and surrounding areas experience hands-on demonstrations 
in the log cabin, Poppleton school, and the other buildings in the Village.  In FYE 
2013, there were 12,012 participants and $85,207 in revenue was generated. 

•	 Summer Programs – History Fun provided 6 weeks of programmed activities 
for children (69 children participated generating $8,780 in gross revenue). 

•	 Civil War Days – Offered over five days and recaptured what it was like during 
the Civil War, enhanced by trained historical re-enactors and various participatory 
events like square dancing and marching in lines like Confederate or Union 
soldiers. Middle school children enjoy this unique educational experience, 
including a contest measuring the speed of a telegraph message and text 
message orchestrated by President Lincoln.  (Yes, really!).  There were 1,186 
visitors for this program in FYE 2013 which generated $17,790 in revenue. 

•	 Civil War Twilight Tour – Created a magical experience where visitors could relive 
the triumphs, pains, and family trials of the Civil War era.  Fiddle and dulcimer music; 
stories shared by reenactors including a postmaster, Union officer, and grieving 
widow; and a campfire chat by Confederate soldiers were part of the experience.   

•	 Christmas and Halloween Holiday Events – Halloween and Christmas were 
celebrated at the Village with a unique set of experiences for children and adults. 
The Old-Fashioned Christmas event had over 380 visitors and generated $1,007.  
The Halloween event attracted 240 visitors and generated $988.  Both of these 
events were generously sponsored by Genisys Credit Union, Tim Horton’s,  
and Meijer.



9

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

•	 Evening Village Talks – Celebrated the rich history of the Great Lakes region.  In 
FYE 2013, various speakers shared valuable information on a wide array of topics 
including Interlochen Arts, Dr. Ben Carson, Pewabic Pottery, and the War of 1812. 

•	 Thursday Teas at Two – Through the generous sponsorship of Elizabeth Kaniarz, 
Financial Consultant, monthly speaking events were offered, giving visitors a 
chance to enjoy a hot cup of tea, light refreshments, and historical information 
on topics as diverse as the Detroit Zoo, Civil War quilts, and shipwrecks on the 
Great Lakes.

•	 Cheddar’s Preschool Story Hour – Provided pre-school age children with an 
ongoing opportunity to be greeted by a loveable character named Cheddar the 
Mouse and hear stories read by a Village staff member.

•	 Artisan Arts Workshops – Prompted by increased interest in blacksmithing, 
the Village has begun creating a series of engaging programs for participants to 
learn time-honored techniques for metal, wood, clay, textiles, and paper.

In FYE 2013, the Troy Historic Village creatively utilized the Village grounds to form 
a Pioneer Garden containing an appetizing array of fresh vegetables including 
lettuce, tomatoes, peppers, corn, and carrots.  The project was organized by the 
efforts of volunteer Bill Warren and the generous contribution of plants by Nino 
Salvaggio’s grocery store.  Partnering with buildOn (whose mission is to break the 
cycle of poverty, illiteracy and low expectations through service and education) 
made a memorable and unique experience for several students from Oak Park and 
Detroit Renaissance High Schools.

A creative educational and hands on garden was created adjacent to the Poppleton 
school house.  The ABC Garden enhanced learning the alphabet by displaying the 
names of plants and having durable artifacts reinforce the learning.  For example, 
an old clothes iron was displayed next to the irises to highlight the letter “I”.  This 
garden was enhanced in FYE 2013 through a generous grant and volunteer 
support from the Troy Garden Club.  Members from the Troy Garden Club ran an 
ABC Garden Story Hour over the summer for children age 5 to 7, pairing stories 
with garden activities.

Various prototypes for interpretive signage and visitor engagement displays were 
created to research the most appealing, attractive, and informative displays. Based 
on visitor feedback, permanent signage and interactive displays will be created in 
the coming years when sufficient resources are secured.

The hours of operation of the Village were expanded in FYE 2013 to include 
Fridays and Saturdays during summer and the Village is projected to be open 

Monday through Friday throughout the year.



10

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

IV. Public Awareness
Strategic Goal:  Establish region-wide awareness of the Troy Historic Village 
programs and services.

One of the important critical issues identified early in the strategic planning process 
for THS was the low level of awareness of the Troy Historic Village currently in Troy 
and surrounding areas.  The Society will address this issue in the coming years by 
developing more robust and dynamic marketing and public relations initiatives, but 
also by strengthening and expanding partnerships with other community groups and 
organizations.

THS and the Troy Historic Village have partnered with several organizations in Troy 
and surrounding areas for many years.  In FYE 2013, we enjoyed successful events 
and programs with the following organizations:

•	 Troy Garden Club – The partnership with the Troy Garden Club has existed for 
over 40 years.  Garden Club members generously offer their time and talents to 
plant and maintain the various flower beds in the Village.  The annual Garden 
Club Walk took place in July and the Troy Historic Village was a featured garden.  
The Club Boutique at the Village offered outdoor art, unique jewelry, and other 
arts and crafts.  Over 800 visitors toured the Village during the walk.

•	 Troy Nature Society – Staff and volunteers from the Troy Historic Village and 
Troy Nature Society jointly worked on two major events in FYE 2013, “Maple 
Syrup Time – Past and Present” and “Through Trails, Time, and Troy.” 

•	 Troy Chamber of Commerce – THV hosted the Chamber’s Economic 
Development Committee and a member morning meeting.

•	 Michigan Museums Association – The Village hosted a meeting of the MMA 
board members and museum professionals from SE Michigan for a relaxing 
evening program catered through the generous sponsorship of Ruth’s Chris  
Steak House.

•	 Detroit Institute of Art – THV participated in the DIA Inside/Out project to display 
a replication of DIA artwork on the Village grounds. 

Through the efforts of Village staff and THS board support, the Village newsletter was 
enhanced in FYE 2013 to provide a new attractive layout, content improvements, 
and a quarterly distribution schedule.  Electronic distribution was utilized to reduce 
operating costs.

Improvements to the Village website were undertaken in FYE 2013 to improve content 
and utilize other social media such as Facebook and Twitter.  Future enhancements 
will allow for smart phone accessibility and search engine optimization.



11

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

V. Adequate Resources 

Strategic Goal:  Maintain sufficient financial, technical, and human resources to support 
the operations and capital projects of the Village.

An essential responsibility of the Troy Historical Society and THV staff is to properly 
maintain the historic resources in the Village, which includes accessioned items like 
documents, pictures, and other physical items.  These responsibilities also include 
properly managing the maintenance of the Village grounds and facilities.  In FYE 2013, 
several projects were undertaken and completed to maintain the Village facilities, 
including the following:

• Repairs to Niles-Barnard House (replacement of windows, other improvements 
undertaken to received permission from the City of Troy for temporary occupancy) 

• Repairs to Poppleton School cupola

• Exterior painting of Caswell  House

• Restoration of Blacksmith Shop bellows

• Specifications and preparation of a Request for Proposal to replace hot water 
heating system in main building

Limited human and financial resources continue to present a challenge to properly 
manage artifacts and other historical collections.  The Village used the services of 
two interns from Wayne State University to continue the scanning and organization 
of materials.  Efforts to intensify collections management will continue in FYE 2014  
and beyond.

Village and City of Troy management staff members met several times during the year 
with the new City Manager to familiarize him with the Troy Historic Village and discuss 
ways of working together effectively.  Topics for these meetings included an overview 
of the Troy Historical Society’s contributions and a brief history of the facilities in the 
Troy Historic Village; the renewable Five-Year Agreement between the City and THS for 
Use, Operation, and Management of the Troy Historic Village; and the overall strategic 
direction for the Village.

Village staff met with City of Troy staff to update the Village’s Five-Year Capital 
Maintenance Plan to include it in the City of Troy’s Capital Improvement Plan.  Among 
the specific capital projects to be included are replacement of old paver pathways, 
relocation of the Gazebo, an engineering study to support the master site plan, and 
replacement of the deteriorating stone surface at the front entrance of the main building.



12

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

In FYE 2013 Village staff and THS board members jointly worked on defining the 
technical specifications for a new phone and IT system for the Village, and identifying 
potential vendors for the new system.  Several discussions also were conducted with 
City of Troy staff regarding the proposed changes and the technical, pricing, and service 
options that could be provided by the City.  A new telephone/IT system was selected in 
late 2013 (SunTel Services) and the system will be installed in January 2013.

Three new staff members were added to the Village in FYE 2013, including coordinators 
for Communications and Marketing, and an additional historic interpreter.  These 
part-time positions will enhance our ability to communicate with the public and our 
stakeholders, and increase public awareness of the Village.



13

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

VI. Organizational Culture 

Strategic Goal:  Continue the transformation of the Troy Historical Society and Board 
of Trustees to a governance organization dedicated to the preservation and growth of 
the Troy Historic Village.  Improve the level of expertise and performance of the staff 
and Board of Trustees through training, customer service, and community involvement.

The commitment of the members of the Troy Historical Society to support the Troy 
Historic Village over this past year and in the 47 years since the Society was formed 
continues to be significant.  THS assumed governance and management responsibilities 
for the Village in FYE 2012 when the City made significant budget cuts and ended full 
operational support for THV.  Since its formation in 1966, THS members and financial 
supporters of the Troy Historical Society contributed over $1.3 million supplement the 
significant investments made by the City of Troy to acquire, relocate, and construct most 
of the historical facilities in the Troy Historic Village.

In FYE 2013, 113 individuals volunteered over 4,200 hours by serving on the Board of 
Trustees and various committees, organizing and sponsoring educational programs, 
and assisting in special events.

After assuming operational and governance responsibilities for the Village, the THS 
Board understood that it needed to transform from a social group that shared a love 
of history and financially supported facility projects in the Village, to an organization 
that functioned more like a business.  The THS Board approved a resolution to adopt 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) financial statements and utilize 
accrual-based accounting procedures (versus cash-based accounting).

The 2013 strategic plan for THS identified several initiatives to enhance the governance 
and management performance of the organization.  In FYE 2013, significant progress 
was made by THS to transform itself.  The mission statement for THS was revised and 
a new vision statement was created that reinforced the organization’s essential purpose 
as PRESERVATION, EDUCATION, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, and COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT.  

During FYE 2013, a review of THS Board composition, Trustee responsibilities, and 
needed technical and professional expertise was undertaken.  The importance of THS/
THV staff and trustees’ commitment, enthusiasm, and involvement was emphasized.  A 
comprehensive review of Board committees, including their structure and responsibilities, 
was also begun in FYE 2013.  

A list of volunteers is included in the Supporting Documents.





Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents

VII.  Supporting Documents for FYE 2013

•	 THS Board of Trustees

•	 THS Board Committee Members

•	 FYE 2013 Audited Financial Statements

•	 Financial Sponsors

•	 Volunteers

•	 Collections Report



Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents

Board of Trustees 
Troy Historical Society

2012-2013

Judy Iceman President
Administration and Sales, SunTel 
Services; troop leader, Girl Scouts of 
America, five years

Ward Randol

Vice  
President 
& Assistant 
Treasurer

Attorney, Dickinson Wright LLC; member, 
Troy Downtown Development

John Lavender Treasurer

Retired Networking Consultant, IBM; 
volunteer instructor, Troy Senior Computer 
Center; President, St. Augustine Lutheran 
Church & School Foundation

Sherrill Jackson Secretary
Instructor, Troy Nature Society; Retired 
Project Manager, EDS; Docent, Detroit 
Zoological Society

Barbara Chambers
Code Enforcement Officer, City of 
Clawson; member, Troy Historic District 
Commission

Jim Crandall Retired corporate and real estate tax 
consultant

Alison Iceman Environmental Services Specialist, 
HealthCure

Mary Kerwin Development and Special Events Director, 
Boys & Girls Club of Troy

Rosemary Kornacki
Retired sales executive, Broner Safety. 
Former chair of the Troy Historical 
Commission. Professional musician.

Sue Lavender

Retired bookkeeper; Recording Secretary, 
State Board Lutheran Child and Family 
Service Auxiliary; member and Past 
Treasurer, Oakland County Quilt Guild

Michael Nowosatko
Small business owner; graphic designer; 
Committee Chairman, Troop 1701, Boy 
Scouts of America

Fred Rounds Retired engineer, General Motors

Judy Siess
Retired, Michigan Family Independence 
Agency; past Board member, YWCA of 
Metro Detroit

Cindy Stewart

Community Affairs Director, City of Troy; 
Past President, Board of Directors, Boys 
& Girls Club of Troy; Board of Directors, 
Troy People Concerned; Board of 
Directors, Troy Youth Assistance

Jonathan Strong

Account Vice President, Financial Advisor, 
UBS; active leader, Boy Scouts of 
America; member, Troy Chamber  
of Commerce

Ann Toth Middle School teacher, Holy Name 
Catholic School

David Zuza
Economic Development Committee, Troy 
Chamber of Commerce; strategic planner 
and  hospital administrator



Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents

Board Committee Members 
Troy Historical Society

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
 Judy Iceman, President
 Ward Randol, Vice President
 John Lavender, Treasurer
 Sherrill Jackson, Secretary
 Mary Kerwin, Chair, Board Development
 Jonathan Strong, Chair, Fund Development
 Cindy Stewart, Chair Mktg. & Public Relations
 Ann Toth, Liaison, Programming & Services
 Jim Crandall, Chair, Village Operations

BOARD DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  
W/SUB-COMMITTEE NOMINATING
 Mary Kerwin, Chairperson (both Board Dev. and Nominating) 
 Sherrill Jackson, Member
 Sue Lavender, Member
 Barb Chambers, Member

FINANCE COMMITTEE  
W/SUB-COMMITTEE VILLAGE STORE
 John Lavender, Treasurer, Chairperson
 Jim Crandall, Member
 Ward Randol, Vice President
 Fred Rounds, Member
 Jeff Lambrecht, Volunteer
 Barb Chambers, Chairperson: Village Store 
 Susan Ball, CPA Volunteer

FUND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
 Jonathan Strong, Chairperson
 Rosemary Kornacki, Member
 Cindy Stewart, Member
 David Zuza, Staff

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE  
W/SUB-COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
 Judy Iceman, Chairperson
 John Lavender, Member
 Sue Lavender, Chairperson: Membership
 Loraine Campbell, Staff



Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents

Board Committee Members (Cont.)
Troy Historical Society 

MARKETING & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE  
W/SUB-COMMITTEE VILLAGE PRESS
 Cindy Stewart, Chairperson
 Mike Nowosatko, Member
 Dick Beltramini, Volunteer
 Alison Iceman, Chairperson: Village Press
 Kim Hutchison, Staff

PROGRAMMING & SERVICES
 Ann Toth, Board Liaison
 Judy Siess, Member
 Matthew Hackett, Staff
 Stephanie Suszek, Staff

VILLAGE OPERATIONS COMMITTEE
 Jim Crandall, Chairperson
 Ward Randol, Member
 Alison Iceman, Member
 Fred Rounds, Member



Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents



























Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents

Individuals
Viola Aspinwall-Smith
Marsha Baergen
Laura Bahnmiller
Leonard Bantleon
Loraine Campbell
Karol Carter
Paul Clark
Barbara Crandall
Linda Davis
Judy Davy
Patricia Gates
Joan Geering
Matthew Hackett
Joyce Haslukowicz
Albert Hatala
James  Hawkins
Judith Holmberg
Judy Iceman
Helen Jarrait
Marilyn Jarrait
Kathy Johnson
Bonnie Kalef
Mary Kerwin
Rosemary Kornacki
Marie Koski
Padma Kuppa
Lois Lance
John Lavender
Jean Lawrence
Russell Lewis
Ellen Maier
Kay McFarland
Julie McGee
Karen McMahon
Mary Lou Meade
Verna Meinershagen
John Mitchell
Beth Mosshart
Andrew O’Gawa
Bob Olree
John Parkinson
Anne Partlan
Thomas Passingham
Susan Price
Erica Proschkow
John Ragan
Ward Randol
Irene Reich

Kristine Rose
Fred Rounds
Doris Schuchter
Paola Seidel
Jean Shedlik
Eric Showalter
John Sieffert
George W. Smith
Paul Stenborg
Cindy Stewart
Jeanne Stine
Bud Stockdale
Brian Stoutenburg
Jonathan Strong
Larry Tracey
Marion Turowski
Yvonne Waatti
Rose Zawislak

Organizations
Ajax Paving
Bagel Factory Café
Brooksie Way Foundation
City of Troy
Detail LLC
Elaine’s Bagels
EM Schroeder Insurance
Genisys Credit Union
Hopkins Burns Design Studio
Kelly Services
Kim’s Family Restaurant
Kirco/Columbia Center
Kresge Foundation
Macy’s
Master Auto
Meijer
Nino Salvaggio’s Market
Rocky Mountain Chocolate Factory
Safebuilt Inc.
SE Michigan Buick Club
Starbucks Coffee
Suburban Collection
SunTel Services
The Somerset Collection
Tim Horton’s Café and Bake Shop
Woodward Warehouse

Financial Sponsors 
Troy Historical Society

FYE July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013



Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Supporting 
Documents

Ambassadors
Fred Barnard
Kathy Briscoe
Linda Davis
Jo Grindem
Sherrill Jackson
Sue Lavender
Julie Martz
Kay McFarland
Janet Schairer
Jean Shedlik

Village Store
Barbara Chambers
Judy Davy

Public Programs
Kathy Briscoe
Mary Cornelius
John Lavender
Sue Lavender
Michael Nowosatko
Marian Nowosatko
Ward Randol
Jean Shedlik
Gerry Young

Special Events
Jean Behl
Pam Brady
Kathy Briscoe
Ron & Linda 
 Buchanan
Seth Bucholz
Jim Cassell
Barb Chambers
Mary Cornelius
Phoebe Crandall
Linda Davis
Judy Davy
Laura Deluca
Andrew Drews
Pat Eisenberger
Pam Epple
Helen Gach
Joyce Green
Jo Grindem
Toni Grow
Diane Gurzick
Jeff Hendrie

Geoff Hoerauf
Judy Iceman
Alison Iceman
Roger Kaniarz
Mary Keewen
Rosemary Kornacki
John & Sue Lavender
Susan & Kevin  
 Lindsey
Janet Marshall
Glen Marshall
Dan McCarville
Kay McFarland
Mike & Marian 
Nowosatko
Saim Raza
Michelle Romig
Fred & Muriel  
 Rounds
Judy Rutherford
Nirali Shah
Jean & Paul Shedlik
Judy Siess
Cindy Stewart
Ann Toth
Steve Toth
Susie Vette
Bill Warren
Gerry Young
David Zuza

Buildings & Grounds
Mike Culpepper 
Dwight Presser
Bill Ziemba

Special Projects
Glen Marshall 
Lynn McLean
Dale Schairer
Jennifer Perkins
Bill Warren

Troy Garden Club

Church of Latter Day 
Saints

buildOn

First United Methodist 
of Troy Youth

Boy Scout Group  
No. 1701

List of Volunteers 
Troy Historical Society

FYE July 1 2012 - June 30, 2013



34

Annual Report
Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2013

Collections Report
Troy Historical Society

FYE July 1 2012 - June 30, 2013 

2012-2013 Accessioned Donations
• Music box with photo album attached, 1907
• Two-man saw, 1900
• Rug beater, 1915
• Long-handled axe, 1900
• Ax handle, 1900
• Pick axe, 1910
• Ladies hat form
• Inkstand
• Depression glass:

4 pink coffee cups
1 pink creamer
1 pink sugar bowl
1 light pink platter
2 clear platters with etched designs
2 etched glass banana bowls
1 etched glass ink bottle
9 pressed glass bowls of various sizes
1 clear pressed glass platter
1 clear pressed glass dish
2 pressed glass coasters
2 clear pressed glass refrigerator boxes with lids
11 green wine glasses made by Steuben Glass Works of Corning, NY
9 pale pink sunburst-patterned plates
1 pink dahlia-patterned platter
4 pink sunburst-patterned saucers
12 pink plates
1 purple blown-glass candy dish
1 purple ribbed console bowl
2 satin glass vases, one with a glass top
1 purple candy bowl
1 purple platter
3 purple dishes
5 red plates
1 frosted green water bottle with stopper
2 purple twisted candlesticks
1 white perfume bottle with stopper
1 brown Bundt cake mold
1 glass lamp with reflector and wall sconce
2 decorative plates
2 silver crumb pans

• 4 books (Old Granny Fox, The Adventures of Grandfather Frog, The 
Adventures of Chatterer the Squirrel and the Adventures of Danny 
Meadow Mouse.

• Pair of blacksmith’s shears
• Green wooden doll cradle
• 349 photographs of Troy’s World War II veterans
• 8 photographs of the Chatfield House
• 141 photographs of the establishment of the Troy Public Library
• 39 copies of Troy Today magazine

Total number of donated items: 639







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 3, 2014 
 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, February 3, 2014, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming  
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Ed Pennington  
Doug Tietz 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Chief Gary Mayer Presented Safest City Award 
 
C-2 Glenn Lapin Presented an Economic Development Activity Update  
 
C-3 Mayor Dane Slater Presented a Proclamation for Random Acts of Kindness Week, 

February 10-16, 2014 to Nancy Morrison, Troy Community Coalition Executive 
Director, Who Promoted the Incredible Kids Recognition Program  

 
C-4 Representative Martin Howrylak Presented a Legislative Update  
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 3, 2014 
 

- 2 - 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – None 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:  None 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – None 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 
 
b) City Council Nominations:  None 
 
I-3 No Request for Closed Session 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2014-02-013 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2014-02-013-J-2 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 3, 2014 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – January 27, 2014 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
a) Proclamation for Random Acts of Kindness Week – February 10-16, 2014 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) February 10, 2014 - Rezoning Application – Proposed Professional/Medical Building 

West of Rochester, South Side of Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road) From R-1C (One 
Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District 

b) February 10, 2014 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Assisted Living Facilities 
ZOTA - 246  

 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Bernardi, Maryanne Spoke about tree preservation in Troy. 
 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  Council Comments Advanced 
 
Council Member Tietz requested that Mayor Slater give a brief overview of the topics that will 
be discussed during the Joint City Council/Planning Commission meeting scheduled on 
February 11, 2014 at 7:30 PM in the Council Boardroom at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., 
Troy, MI  48084. 
 
Council Member Hodorek commented positively on economic developments in Troy. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 3, 2014 
 

- 4 - 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Planning Commission-Draft – January 14, 2014 
b) Planning Commission-Final – January 14, 2014  
c) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – January 21, 2014 
d) Animal Control Appeal Board-Draft – January 22, 2014 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-2 Department Reports:   
a) Quarterly Financial Report Ending December 31, 2013 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Cathy Russ From Kerry Bentivolio Regarding Hosting House of Representatives 11th 

Congressional District Mobile Constituent Service 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 

– Case No. U-17334 – February 6, 2014 at 9:00 AM 
Noted and Filed 

 

P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 
TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

The Meeting RECESSED at 8:26 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 8:31 PM. 
 

Q. STUDY ITEMS: 
Q-1 Bond Rating (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager with Special Guest 

Bobby Bendzinski, Bendzinski & Co.) 
 
Mayor Slater opened the discussion and called on City Manager Kischnick to introduce the 
topic Bond Rating. 
 
City Manager Kischnick laid out the format and began the discussion about Bond Rating. He 
began a PowerPoint presentation that will cover the information discussed during the meeting. 
He introduced Bobby Bendzinski from Bendzinski & Co.  
 
Mr. Bendzinski began by explaining rating agencies and their methodologies. He discussed the 
presentation slides. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 3, 2014 
 

- 5 - 

Council Member Campbell discussed a city in Indiana with 30% fund balance that was 
devastated by a tornado and needed that fund balance to survive. He said 20% seems like a 
safe number for a fund balance minimum. 
 
City Manager Kischnick indicated that an informational video will be available on the City 
website. 
 
Mayor Slater said he was looking for expert guidance on a good fund balance percentage and 
he got that information tonight. He clarified that Troy meets criteria for AAA and that 30% fund 
balance would be a good minimum to maintain our AAA. 
 
Mr. Bendzinski reiterated that the income flexibility limited by the Charter hinders Troy, so more 
fund balance can only help. 
 
Mr. Kischnick stated that the tax cap is what will keep Troy at AA+, regardless of fund balance 
percentage. 
 
Council Member Tietz agreed with Council Member Campbell and stated that he would feel 
uncomfortable spending down the fund balance on something that will not make a difference in 
the future as much as planning for legacy costs. He thinks Council should think of long-term 
investing in pension obligations, for example.  
 
Mayor Slater summarized that tonight was about what it takes to maintain Troy’s good bond 
ratings. Future budget discussions will cover fund balance spending vs. saving. 
 
Council Member Hodorek asked what is Oakland County’s fund balance.  Mr. Bendzinski 
answered that he believes it is 50%, but that Oakland County handles their fund balance 
uniquely from other government bodies.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked if 20-30% is the direction for fund balance. He asked if 
taking fund balance from 50% down to 30% would affect Troy’s AAA rating. Mr. Bendzinski 
stated that media coverage of Troy reducing fund balance could draw a review from an agency. 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked if paying pension obligations would look positive to agencies. 
Mr. Bendzinski stated paying down debt is generally positive; however, there are times when an 
agency may consider paying debt in advance not positively. 
 
Mr. Kischnick stated that if you have 50% fund balance and take it down to 30%, and you use it 
to pay for pensions and capital, would an agency look down at that. Mr. Bendzinski stated it 
depends on how much is compared to the whole. In addition, it depends on whether the capital 
project is needed. 
 
Council Member Hodorek stated that Troy has serious needs to keep moving forward with 
economic development. She discussed the condition of roads and asked if we spend money on 
roads now instead of spending more on roads later when they’re in worse shape, wouldn’t that 
look better? 
 
Mr. Bendzinski stated yes, that would look better to an agency. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 3, 2014 
 

- 6 - 

Mayor Slater brought the conversation back from budget discussions to the topic of bond 
rating. He feels comfortable with the information provided tonight, and highlighted the 
statement by Standard & Poor’s at the end of the PowerPoint presentation. 
 
Mr. Benzinski replied that ratings are complex and one thing always affects the other. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked if we draw the fund balance from 50% down to 30%, and we 
pick the top five projects to work on but not solve, would that be viewed less by agencies?  Mr. 
Bendzinski stated that would be viewed as a band-aid. It would be better to focus on 
completely fixing fewer projects. 
 
Mayor Slater clarified that if the City decided to eliminate the library millage and use fund 
balance to pay for the Library, that action would hurt the bond ratings. Mr. Bendzinski agreed.  
 
Council Member Fleming highlighted slide five of the presentation and asked for a copy of the 
S&P report. 
 
Mr. Bendzinski commended City Council and the Administration for all the hard work involved in 
maintaining the City’s AAA bond rating. 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:33 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 


	February 10, 2014 Agenda
	Cover Memo
	Vision Statement and Goals
	Top 12 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 2013 “A Healthy Me is Drug Free” Pledges Presented by the Red Ribbon Chairperson for Troy Families for Safe Homes and Student Representatives from the Troy School District (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director)
	C-2 City of Troy Receives Government Finance Officers Association’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award (Introduced by: Tom Darling, Financial Services Director)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Rezoning Application – Proposed Professional/Medical Building West of Rochester, South Side of Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road) From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District
	E-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Assisted Living Facilities ZOTA - 246

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Historic District Commission
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – February 3, 2014

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Auction Services
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Contract 13-6 – 2014 Water Main Replacement
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Tactical Vests
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Tax Bill Printing
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  State of Michigan MiDeal Program – Upgrade Telephone System
	f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award - Wayfinding Consultant Contract

	J-5 4th Annual Regional Arts and Cultural Awards

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Pure Troy – Mowing Maintenance


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted
	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Building Department Activity Report – January, 2014
	b) Troy Historical Society Annual Report FYE June 30, 2013

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:  None Submitted
	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	Q. STUDY ITEMS:
	Q-1 No Study Items

	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	March 3, 2014 Liquor Violation Hearings
	March 17, 2014 Liquor Violation Hearings
	March 3, 2014 Regular Meeting
	March 17, 2014 Regular Meeting
	April 7, 2014 Regular Meeting
	April 14, 2014 Regular Meeting
	May 12, 2014 Regular Meeting
	May 19, 2014 Regular Meeting
	June 2, 2014 Regular Meeting
	June 16, 2014 Regular Meeting
	July 7, 2014 Regular Meeting
	July 21, 2014 Regular Meeting
	August 11, 2014 Regular Meeting
	August 25, 2014 Regular Meeting
	September 8, 2014 Regular Meeting
	September 22, 2014 Regular Meeting
	October 6, 2014 Regular Meeting
	October 20, 2014 Regular Meeting
	November 10, 2014 Regular Meeting
	November 24, 2014 Regular Meeting
	December 1, 2014 Regular Meeting
	December 15, 2014 Regular Meeting
	February 11, 2014 Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Meeting
	April 21, 2014 Special Budget Meeting
	April 23, 2014 Special Budget Meeting
	Attachments.pdf
	20140210 Agenda - C-02  City of Troy Receives GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.pdf
	20140210 Agenda - E-01 Public Hearing - Rezoning Application - Proposed Professional-Medical Building (3545 Rochester Rd) From R-1C to CB District
	20140210 Agenda - E-01 Sketch of Survey
	20140210 Agenda - E-02  Zoning Text Amendment (ZOTA 246) - Assisted Living Facilities
	ADP320E.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND


	20140210 Agenda - J-04a  SPR3 Exercise Renewal Option – Auction Services
	20140210 Agenda - J-04b  SPR1 Award to Low Bidder - Contract 13-6 - 2014 Water Main Replacement
	BidComparison-13-6.pdf
	1
	13.502.5 Wattles Road
	13.504.5 Westwood
	13.505.5 Section 7, City of Troy

	2
	13.502.5 Wattles Road
	13.504.5 Westwood
	13.505.5 Section 7, City of Troy

	3
	13.502.5 Wattles Road
	13.504.5 Westwood
	13.505.5 Section 7, City of Troy



	20140210 Agenda - J-04c  SPR2 Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Tactical Vests
	ITB-COT 14-01 Tactical Vests.pdf
	ITB-COT 14-01


	20140210 Agenda - J-04d  SPR3  Exercise Renewal Option - Tax Bill Printing
	20140210 Agenda - J-04e  SPR4 State of MI MiDeal Program - Upgrade Telephone System
	20140210 Agenda - J-04f  SPR8 Wayfinding ConsultantServices for Troy Public Library
	A. Compliance with qualifications criteria
	B. Completeness of the proposal
	F. Evaluation Process

	RFP-COT 13-36 Wayfinding Services.pdf
	Page 1
	Page2


	20140210 Agenda - J-05  4th Annual Regional Arts and Cultural Awards
	20140210 Agenda - K-02a Pure Troy - Mowing Maintenance
	20140210 Agenda - O-02a  Building Department Activity Report - January 2014
	20140210 Agenda - O-02b  Troy Historical Society Annual Report FYE June 30, 2013

	20140210 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - February 3, 2014.pdf
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Chief Gary Mayer Presented Safest City Award
	C-2 Glenn Lapin Presented an Economic Development Activity Update
	C-3 Mayor Dane Slater Presented a Proclamation for Random Acts of Kindness Week, February 10-16, 2014 to Nancy Morrison, Troy Community Coalition Executive Director, Who Promoted the Incredible Kids Recognition Program
	C-4 Representative Martin Howrylak Presented a Legislative Update

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – None
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – None
	I-3 No Request for Closed Session

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Meeting Minutes-Draft – January 27, 2014

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Proclamation for Random Acts of Kindness Week – February 10-16, 2014

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  None Submitted

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) February 10, 2014 - Rezoning Application – Proposed Professional/Medical Building West of Rochester, South Side of Colebrook (3545 Rochester Road) From R-1C (One Family Residential) District to CB (Community Business) District
	b) February 10, 2014 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment – Assisted Living Facilities ZOTA - 246

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Planning Commission-Draft – January 14, 2014
	b) Planning Commission-Final – January 14, 2014
	c) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – January 21, 2014
	d) Animal Control Appeal Board-Draft – January 22, 2014

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Quarterly Financial Report Ending December 31, 2013

	O-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Cathy Russ From Kerry Bentivolio Regarding Hosting House of Representatives 11th Congressional District Mobile Constituent Service

	O-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	O-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-17334 – February 6, 2014 at 9:00 AM

	P. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	Q. STUDY ITEMS:
	Q-1 Bond Rating (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager with Special Guest Bobby Bendzinski, Bendzinski & Co.)

	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:




